CITY OF STURGEON BAY
FINANCE/PURCHASING & BUILDING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, April 29, 2014
Council Chambers, City Hall - 421 Michigan Street
7:00pm
1. Roll call.
2. Adoption of agenda.
3. Consideration of: 2013 Audit
4. Consideration of:  Chemical Spraying of Aquatic Vegetation
5. Review bills.
6. Adjourn.
NOTE: DEVIATION FROM THE AGENDA ORDER SHOWN MAY OCCUR.

Notice is hereby given that a majority of the Common Council may be present at this meeting to gather
information about a subject over which they have decision-making responsibility. If a quorum of the
Common Council does atiend, this may constitute a meeting of the Common Council and is noticed as
such, although the Common Council will not take any formal action at this meeting.

Posted:

Date:; 04/25/14 Finance /Purchasing & Building Committee Members:
Time: 2:45pm Joseph Stutting, Chair

By: T Danny Wiegand, Vice Chair

Robert Schlicht Jr,




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TITLE: 2013 Audit

BACKGROUND:

Schenck Government & Not-For-Profit Solutions has completed the 2013

financial audit for the City of Sturgeon Bay. A clean audit opinion was issued
by Schenck. The details of their financial audit can be found in the attached

audit report and management letter.

FISCAL IMPACT:

OPTIONS:
audit report.

RECOMMENDATION:

The fiscal impact to the City is the contracted amount of $16,880.

Accept or reject the Schenck Government & Not-For-Profit Solutions 2013

Recommend to the Common Council to accept the Schenck Government &
Not-For-Profit Solutions 2013 financial audit report for the City of Sturgeon

Bay and place if on file.
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PREPARED BY:

H [z

Valerie J. Clarizio
Finance Director/City Treasurer

Steﬁﬁen MCNeI;
City Administrator

REVIEWED BY:
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MANAGEMENT COMMUNICATIONS
CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
December 31, 2013
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CPAs AND SO MUCH MORE.

To the City Council
City of Sturgeon Bay
Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin

We have completed our audit of the basic financial statements of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin (the "City”)
for the year ended December 31, 2013.  The City's financial statements, including our report thereon dated
April 3, 2014, are presented in a separate audit report document. Professional standards require that we provide
you with the following mformation related to our audit.

Our ResgonSIb:htles Under U.S. General!y Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter, our I‘BSpOI‘ISIbEIIty, as descrlbed by professional standards, is to plan and
perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
-United States of America. Because an audit is designed 1o provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and
because we did not perform a detailed examination of all fransactions, there is a risk that material errors, fraud,
noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants .or other illegal acts may exist and
not be detected by us. o

in planning and performing our audit, we considered the C|tys internal contro! over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Citys financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was -not an obijective of
our audit. While our audit provides a reasonable-basis for our opinion, |t does not prowde a legal determination on
the City's compliance with those requirements. :

- Planned Scope and Timing‘ of the Audit

We performed the audit according io the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
correspondence about planning matters.

-Significant Audit Findi’nqs
Consideration of Internal Confrol

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we. considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing. our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal contral. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Our report on internal control over financial
reporting and on compliance and other matters is presented on pages 58 - 59 of the annual report.

Appleton + Fond du Lac - Green Bay : Manitowoc - Milwaukee - Oshkosh . Sheboygan = Stevens Point . Wausau
800-236-2246 . schencksc.com
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Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might -be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore there can be no assurance that all such deficiencles have been Identified. However, as
discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in mternal control that we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a contral dees not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct

misstatements on a timely basis. A materlal weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiensies in internal

control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not

" be prevented, or detected and. corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the following deficiency in the City’s internal
control to be a significant deficiency:

'Finding 2013-001 Preparation of Annual Financial Report
- This finding is described in detail in the schedule of findings and responses on page 60 of the annual report.
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Pracfices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
- terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the approprlateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of exisling policies was not changed

during 2013. We noted noe significant transactions eniered info by the City during the vear for which there Is a

lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. To the best of our knowledge, all significant transactions have been

recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future svents.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting.them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimates included in the financial statemenis were:

Depreciable Life of Capital Assets

* Management's estimate of the depreciable life of the capital assets is based upon analysis of the
expected useful life of the capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions and the
consistency in these factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable life in determining
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

* Accumulated Sick Leave

s Management's estimate of accumulated sick leave is based upon analysis of the employees sick leave
halance. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions and the consistency in these factors and
assumptions used to develop the related liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

Cther Post-Employment Benefits
« Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits is based on an actuarial report. We

evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the other post-employment benefils in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.




Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and compléting our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The financial
statements reflect all accounting adjustments proposed during our audit. These entries are considered routine in
nature and normally do not vary significantly from year to year. Copies of the audit adjustments are available from
management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a"_ﬁnancial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant fo
the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated Aprii 3, 2014, The management representation letter follows this communication.

Management Consullations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. if a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledgs, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

~We generally discuss a variety of matiers, including the application of accounting principles and auditing

. standards, with management each year prior to conducting the audit. These discussions occurred in the normal
.course of our professional relationship and, to the best of our knowledge, our responses were not a condition-to
our retention. ' :

This communication, which does not affect our report dated April 3, 2014 on the financial statements of the City, is
intended solely for the information and use of the City Coungil, management, and others within the City, and is not
intended ta be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely,

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
April 3, 2014 '
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

City Governmental Fund Balances

Presented below is a summary of govemmental fund balances on December 31, 2013, including a comparison
to the prior year. The information is provided for assessing financial resufts for 2013 and for indicating financial
resources available for 2014 and subsequent years.

112313 1 1213112 |
General Fund
Nonspendable :

Inventories and prepaid items $ 1,125 § 1,190
Assigned for subsequent expenditures 416,547 308,542
Unassigned 2,947,883 2,694,320
Total General Fund 3,365,555 3,004,052

Special Revenue Funds
Restricied L :

Revolving loan - 153,681 351,455
Assigned : :

Cable TV - 251,864 212,832
Total Special Revenue Funds _ - 405,545 564,287

Capital Projects Funds
Restricted

Tax Increment Districts Co :

#1 - Industrial Park . . 156,496 146,002

#2 - Waterfront District 1,735,196 3,041,569

#3 - Blight Elimination . 610,752 463,881
Assigned _ _ o

Capital Improvements : 2,369,069 2,441,933
Unassigned : :

#4 - West Waterfront _ {407,773} -
Total Capital Projects Funds 4,463,740 6,093,385

Total Governmental Funds' : $ B234840 $ 96681,724

The following is a calculation of the working caplial reserve approved for the general fund at December 31,
2013:;

Calendar 2014 operating budget o .$ 10,13?,400
Reserve percentage : - x.25
RESERVE § 2534 350

The excess of the general fund unassigned balance over the working capital reserve is $413,533. The Cily
used $416,547 of the 2013 excess to finance expendntures for 2014. In the Capital Improvements fund, the
entire balance has been assigned to 2014,




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN

TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 1 ANNUAL REPORT

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 1991

Date Approved: September 20, 1991

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2028

Current
Year Cumulative
Revenues '
Tax increments $ 487,752 $ 4,817,843
Other 10,494 1,742,346
Total Revenues 468,246 6,560,189
Expenditures
Planning and administration - 102,664
Capital autlay - 2,205,594
Interest _ - 1,293,401
Bond issuance costs - 110,389
- Total Expenditures - 3,712,058
Subtotal Excess Recovered Project Costs 2,848,131
Transfer o Tax incremental district #2 (Year 1) (283,928)
Transfer to Tax Inctemental district #2 (Year 2) (350,407)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 3) {369,879)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 4) {391,430)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 5) (384,801)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 6) (453,438}
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 7) (457,752)
Net Excess Recovered Project Costs 5 156,496
Outstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 $ -

In accordance with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should he made available to the public with
copies being submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical Coliege.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 2 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 1994

Date Approved: September 6, 1994

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2031

Current
Year Cumulative -
Revenues - o
Tax increments ' $ 1,191,505 $ 17,696,812
Other - 164,550 8,629,887
Total Revenues o 1,356,055 - .26,326,699
. Expenditures '
Planning and administration . 28,5671 1,317,883
Capital outlay 153,784 28,213,866
Interest _ 942,192 17,180,844
Bond refunding costs : . 348,280 1,093,810
Total Expenditures 1,472,827 47,806,403
Subtotal Unreimbursed Project Costs 21,479,704
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 1) (283,928)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 2) (350,407)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 3) (313,414)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 4) : (331,976)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 5) : : (263,124)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 6) = - (328,043)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 7) (326,422)
Net Unreimbursed Project Costs . ' $ 19,282,300
Outstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 $ 21,017,586

In accordance with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
~ copies being submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 3 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 2008

Date Approved: Cclober 2, 2008

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2034

Current
Year Curulative

Revenues :

Tax increments : ' $ oo $ 8,034

Other ' : 24,710 594,109

Total Revenues 94,710 ~ 802,143
Expenditures

Planning and administration : o 7,300 138,015

Capital outlay : 74,600 1,874,653

Interest ' 62,268 227,043

Total Expenditures 144,168 2,240,711
Subtotal Unreimbursed Project Costs . 1,638,568

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 3) ' (56,465)

Transfer from Tax incrementat district #1 {Year 4) : - {59,454)

Transfer from Tax incrementat district #1 (Year 5) - (121,677)

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 {Year 8) -~ (125,395)

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 7) ' . (181,330)
Net Unreimbursed Project Costs $ 1,144,247
Outstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 $ 1,755,000

In accorda'ncé with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
copies being submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 4 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 2013

Date Approved: March 19, 2013

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2040

Current
" Year Cumulative |-
Revenues ' :
Tax increments : $ - $ -
- Other - -
.~ Total Revernues - -
Expenditures
Planning and administration 304,869 304,869
Capital outlay 102,904 102,904
Total Expenditures _ 407,773 . 407,773
Net Unreimbursed Project Costs $ 407,773
Qutstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 3 -

In accordance with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
copies being submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.




SUMMARY FINANGIAL INFORMATION

2. Sturgeon Bay Utilities

A condensed income statement showing the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013,
including a comparison te 2012 follows:

. - I Water |  Electric |  Sewer | Total |
Operating Revenues ' o ' _ '
Charges for services - $ 1,998,729 § 15681,551 § 2,034,150 $ 19,714,430
" Other g . 71,183 . 302,497 14,752 388,432

2,089,912 15,084,048 2,048,902 20,102,862

Operating Ekp’enses

Operation and maintenance 1,236,962 13,471,196 1,237,535 15,045,603
Depreciation ' 401,827 1,038,411 446,584 1,886,822
Taxes 26,182 204,012 15,448 245,642
Transfer for tax equivalent 343,501 425,679 - 769,180
2,008,472 15,139,298 1,600,567 18,847,337
2013 Operating Income - $ 61440 § 844750 $ 349335 §$ 1,255,525
2013 PSC Operating income $ 201,401 § 982572 N/A '
2013 PSC Rate of Return 3.06% 6.30% NA
Effective Date of Rates . 8MM3 . BMM1__ . AMh2
2012 Operating [ncome $  (44876) $ 842,728 '§ 442939
Summary comments:

The operating income of the above analysis derived from the financial statements is lower than the PSC
amount primarily due to depreciation on contributed plant, which is not used in PSC calculated amount.




APPENDIX




CITY of STURGEON BAY STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

STURGEEJN BAY UTILITIES
~ Stephen McNeil, City Administrator | James M. Stawicki, General Manager
421 Michigan Street ' 230 East Vine St
Sturgeon Bay, Wl 54235 Sturgeon Bay, Wi 84235
920-746-2200 Phone 920-746-2820 Phone
920-746-2905 Fax : 920-746-2822 Fax
www.sturgeonbaywi.o www.sbunet.com
April 21, 2014
Schenck SC

2200 Riverside Drive
P.O. Box 23818
Green Bay, Wi 54305-3819

This representation letter Is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the City of Sturgeon Bay,
Wisconsin (the “City") which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type .
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of December 31, 2013, and the respective
changes in the financial positlon and where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements for the purpose of expressing opinions as fo whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in
all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U S.

GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as belng limited to matters that are material. Hems are considered
material, regardiess of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of
sirrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgrent of a reasonable person relylng on the information would
be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in
amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. _

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of April 3, 2014, the following representations made fo you during
your audit.

‘Financlal Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated January 27, 2014,
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and for preparation of
the supplementary information in accordance with the applicabie criteria.

2. The financial statements referred {o above are fairly presented in 'conformlty with U.8. GAAP and include all pi‘operly

classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and ali component units required by
generally accepted accounting principles lo be included in the financial reporting entity.

3. Inrepards to atcounting estimates:

s The measurement processes used by management in determining accounting estimates is appmpriate and
con5|stent

« The assumptlons appropriately refiect managemenl’s intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action.

+ The disclosures related to accounting estimales are compiete and appropriate.




10.

1.

s No subsequent event has oceurred that would require adjustment to the accounting estimates or disclosures
inciuded in-the financial statements.

We ackndwledge our responsibility for the design, 'lmplementatlon and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or etror.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to prevent and
detect fraud.

“Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions, including reventes, expenditureslekpenses, loans, fransfers, leasing
atrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

All events subsequént to the date of the financial statéments and for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure

in the aforementioned financial statements,

We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed and they have been posted to the City's
accounts.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened liigation, claims or assessments or unasserted claims or
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements, and we have not consulted a

lawyer concerning litigation, clalims, or assessments.

Guaranteas, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liabls, if any, have been properly recorded or
disclosed.

Information Provided

12.

13.
14.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentatson of the
financiai stalements, such as records, documentation, and other matters.

b.  Additional information that you have requested fror_n us for the purpose of the audit.
¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the City Councll and Utility Commission or summaries of actions of recent mestings for
which minutes have not yet haen prepared,

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

We made an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. We
have disclosed the results of our assessment as follows:

a. We have no knowledge of any fraud ot suspected fraud that affects the City and involves:
i. Management,
ii. Employees who have sigrlificant roles in internal contro), or
jii. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

b. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Gity's financial statements
communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or ofhers,

2




15.

18.

17,

We have disclosed to you all known instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements. '

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements, and we have not consulted a
lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments. :

We have disclosed to you the identity of the City's related partles and all the related party relattonshlps and
transactions of Wthh we are aware.

Government - gpecific

18.
19,

20.

21,
22,
23,

24.

25,

28.

27.
28,

28,
30.

31.

_Wé have made avaitable to you all financial records and refated data.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in,
financial reporting practices.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the audit
objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. .

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our planned
corrective actions, for the report,

The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, liabilities,
deferred inflows/outflows of resaurces, or'equity. :

Ve are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements
applicabie to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws,
regulations and provisians of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts, or other financial data significant to the audit objectives including legal
and confractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There ate no violations or possible vio’!ations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations {including those pertaining fo
adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of confracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and
any related debt covenants whose effects should be considerad for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a
hasis for recording a loss centingency, or for reportmg on noncompilance

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparatnon of the financial statements and related notes, and state financial

report. We have designated an Individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee your services and

have assumed all management responsibilities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those
financial statements and related notes, and state financial report.

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has
any asset been pledged as collateral except as disclosed in the annual financlal report,

The City has complied with all aspects of contraotuai agreements that would have. a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of noncompliance.

We have followed all applicable faws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending budgets.

The financial statemenis include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity mterest and properly
disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.




32.
33.

34.
35,

36.
37.
38.

39,

AQ.

41.

42

43,

44.
45.

46,

All funds that meet the quantitafive criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as méjor are identified
and presented as such and all other fuhds that are presented as major are particularly important to financial statement

users,

Components of net position (net Investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) and components of fund
halance (nonspendable, restrrcted committed, assigned and unassigned) are properly classified and, if applicable,

approved,
Provisions for uncallectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of activities,
and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. '

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues and general revenues.
Interfund, internal, and intra-'entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.

Deposits and investment securities and derivative transactions are properly classified as to risk and are properly
disclosed.

Capital assets, Including infrastructure and intangible assets are properiy capitalized, reported, and, if applicable,
depreciated.

We have appropriately disclosed the City’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available and have

determined that net position were properly recognized under the policy.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RS1). The RSI is measured and
presented within prescnbed guidelines and the methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from
those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the RSI '

We acknowledge our responsibility for presentmg the hohmajor fund combmlng statements, :ndlwdual fund
statements, and supporting schedules, (the supplementary information) in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America, and we believe the supplementary information, including its form
and content, is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplemeantary informatfon have not changed from
those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumpttons or interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the other post-empioyment benefits and have adequately
considered the qualifications of the speciafist in determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial
statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists
with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any_
matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists. -

The fact that the amount of “uncoliateralized” deposits or “uninsured, unregistered securities held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the City's name” during the pertod significantly exceeded the amounts in
those c_at_egories as of the balance sheet was properl_y disclosad in the financial statements.

Arrangements with financial institufions involving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or securities lending agreements,
compensating balances, or other arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances and !En&of-credrt or srmrlar
arrangements, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements. .

The methods and significant assumptions used to determine fair values of financial instruments are as follows: Fair

value Is the amount at which a financial instruinent could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The methods and significant assumptions used result in a measure

-of falr value appropriate for financial statement measurament and disclosure purposes.




47.

48.
49,

50.
51.

52.

Receivabies recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for transactions arising on or
before the balance sheet date and have been appropriately reducad to their estimated net reatizable value.

Capital assets have been evaluated for impairment as a resuit of significant and unexpected decline in service utility.

We bslieve that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and OPEB liabllities and costs for
financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

We do not plan to make frequent amendments to ouf pension or other post-retirement benefit plans.

Expenditures of federai awards were below the $500,000 threshold in the year ended December 31, 2013, and we.
were not required to have an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Wae have evaluated and classified any subsequent events as recognized or nonrecognized through the date of this
[etter. No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent fo the balance sheet date and
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned financial

statements.

Signed:
City Administrator SBU General Manager
Signed: /{E {ihii ( 7y, #i’{) Signed: [ &&é\/
Valane Clarizio “Laurie Bauldry
Finance Director/City Treasuret SBU Accountant
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To the City Council
City of Sturgecn Bay
Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin

We have completed our audit of the basic flnanmal statements of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin (the "City")
for the.year ended December 31, 2013. The City's financial statements, including our report thereon dated
April 3, 2014, are presented in a separate audit report document. Professional standards require that we provide
you with the following information refated to our audit.

Qur Responsibilities Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

‘As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to plan and
perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and
because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material errors, fraud,
noncompliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants or other illegal acts may exist and
not be detected by us. '

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. :

As part of obtammg reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants; noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on
the City's compliance with those requirements.

Planned Scope and T|m1nq of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing prewousiy commumcated to you in our -
correspondence about planning matters. '

Significant Audit Findings

Consideration of Internal Conirol

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered the City's Internal control over financial reportmg {internal control) as a basis for designing. our-
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Our report on internal control over financial
reporting and on compliance and other matters is presented on pages 58 - 59 of the annual report. o

Appleton + Fond du Lac + Green Bay - -Manitowoc - Milwaukee - Oshkosh - Sheboygan - Stevens Point = Wausau
800-236-2246 + schenckse.com )

) Sohenck si




Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
_ not designed to identify all deficlencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses and therefore there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. However, as
discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control thal we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contral does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned. functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal contral, that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit altention by those charged with governance. We consider the following deficiency in the City’s internal
control to be a significant deficiency:

Finding 2013-001 Preparation of Annual Financial Report
- This finding is described in detail in the schedule of findings and responses on page 60 of the annual report.
Qualitative Aspects of Ac_counﬁng Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A to the financlal
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policiés was not changed
during 2013. We noted no significant fransactions entered into by the City during the year for which there Is a
lack of authoritative guidance or congensus. To the best of our knowledge, all significant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an mtegral pait of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimates included in the financial statements were: :

Depreciable Life of Capital Assets

» Management's estimate of the depreciable life of the capital assets is based upon analysis of the
expected useful life of the capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions and the
consistency In these factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciabie life In determining
that it is reascnable in relation to the financial statements {aken as a- whole.

Accumulated Sick Leave

+ Management’'s estimate of accumulated sick leave is based upon analysis of the employees sick leave
balance. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions-and the consistency in these factors and
assumptions used to develop the related liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole,

Cther Post-Employment Benefits
¢ Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits is based on an actuarial report, We

evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the other post-employment benefits in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.




Difficulties Encountered in Performihg the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with m_anégement in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them. to the appropriate level of management. The financial
statements reflect all accounting adjustments proposed during our audit. These entries are considered routing in
nature and.normally do not vary significantly from year to year. Copies of the audit adjustmenis are available from
management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
" accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant {o
the financial statements or the audiiors’ report. No such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 3, 2014, The management representation letter follows this communication,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, managemenl may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. if a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations
with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We'generally discuss a variety of matters, including the applidaiion of accounting principles and auditing
. standards, with management each year prior to conducting the audit. These discussions occurred in the normal
.course of our professional relaticnship and, to the best of our knowledge, our responses. were not a condition to
our retention.

This communication, which does not affect our report dated- -April 3, 2014 on the financial statements of the City, is
intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, and others within the Clty, and is not
intended to be and shou]d not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sincerely, o
Certified Public Accountants

Green Bay, Wisconsin
April 3, 2014




SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. City Governmental Fund Balances

Presented below Is a summary of go.vernmentai fund balances on December 31, 2013, including a comparison
to the prior year. The information is provided for assessing financial results for 2013 and for indicating financial
resources available for 2014 and subsequent years.

| 1213113 | 12131112 |
General Fund ; -
Nonspendable -

Inventories and prepaid items $ 1125 $ 1,190
Assigned for subsequent expenditures 416,547 308,542
Unassigned 2,947 883 2,694,320
Total General Fund 3,365,655 3,004,052

Special Revenue Funds
Restricted

Revolving loan ' ' ' 153,681 351,455
Assigned :

Cable TV ' o . B 251,864 212,832
Total Special Revenue Funds _ o .. 405,545 564,287

Capital Projects Funds
‘Restricted

Tax Increment Districts . :

#1 - Industrial Park 156,496 146,002

#2 - Waterfront District 1,735,196 3,041,569

#3 - Blight Elimination . 610,752 463,881
Assigned ' . . _ ' _

Capital Improvements 2,369,069 2,441,933
Unassigned , '

#4 - West Waterfront (407,773) -
Total Capital Projects Funds 4,463,740 6,093,385

Total Governmental Funds $ 8234840 $ 96861 :724

The following is a calculation of the working capital reserve approved for the general fund at December 31,
2013

Calendar 2014 operating budget - $ 10,137,400
Reserve perceniage X.25
RESERVE % 2534350

The excess of the general fund unassigned balance over the working capital reserve is $413,533. The City
-used $416,547 of the 2013 excess to finance expenditures for 2014 In the Capital Improvements fund, the
entire balance has been assigned to 2014.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 1 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 1991

Date Approved: September 20, 1991

- Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2028

"Current

Year Cumulative
Revenues ' '
‘Tax increments $ 457,752 § 4,817,843
Other ' 10,494 1,742,346
- Total Revenues 468,246 6,560,189
Expenditures
Planning and administration - 102,664
Capital outlay - 2,206,684
Interest _ - . 1,283,401
Bond issuance costs - 110,399
Total Expenditures - 3,712,058
Subtotal Excess Recovered Project Costs _ 2,848,131
Transfer to Tax incremental district #2 (Year 1) (283,928)
Transfer to Tax Inctemental district #2 (Year 2) _ : (350,407)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 3) (369,879)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 4) (391,430)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 5) (384,801)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 6) (453,438)
Transfer to Tax Incremental district #2 & #3 (Year 7) (457,752)
Net Excess Recovered Project Costs : $ 156,486
QOutstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 : $ -

In accordance with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
copies being submiited to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical Coliege.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 2 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1. 1994

Date Approved: September 6. 1994

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2031

Current
Year | Cumulative
Revenues o
Tax increments : $ 1,191,505 § 17,696,812
Other 164,550 - 8,629,887
Total Revenues 1,356,055 = 26,326,699
Expenditures : :
Flanning and administration 28,571 1,317,883
Capital outtay ; . 153,784 28,213,866
Interest 942,192 17,180,844
Bond refunding costs 348,280 1,083,810
Total Expenditures 1,472,827 47,806,403
Subtotal Unreimbursed Project Costs 21,479,704
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 1) (283,928)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 2) o {350,407)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 3) {313,414)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 {Year 4) {331,976)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 5) : {263,124)
Transfer from Tax tncremental district #1 (Year 6) _ (328,043)
Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 7) _ (326,422)
Net Unreimbursed Project Costs : 8 19,282,300
Outstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 $ 21,017,588

In accordance with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
copies being submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANGING DISTRICT NO. 3 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 2008

Date Approved: Qctober 2, 2008

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2034

Current
Year Cumulative

Revenues

Tax increments ' $ - $ 8,034

Other g 94,710 594,109

Total Revenues 94,710 602,143
Expenditures

Planning and administration _ 7,300 139,015

Capital outlay : 74,600 1,874,653

Interest : ' 62,268 227,043

Total Expenditures - 144,168 2,240,711
Subtotal Unreimbursed Project Costs ' 1,638,568

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 3) ' _ {56,465)

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 4) ' {59,454}

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 5) (121,677)

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 6) o (125,395)

Transfer from Tax incremental district #1 (Year 7) ' : (131,330)
Net Unreimbursed Project Costs - ' $ 1,144,247

- Qutstanding Long-term Debt at- December 31, 2013 : - § 1,755,000

n accorda'nce with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
copies being submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT NO. 4 ANNUAL REPORT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Date Created: January 1, 2013
Date Approved: March 19, 2013

Latest Possible Termination Date: December 31, 2040

Current
Year Cumulative
Revenues -
Tax increments $ - $ -
Other : - -
"Total Revenues - -
Expenditures
Planning and administration 304,869 -304,869
Capital outlay 102,004 102,904
Total Expenditures - 407,773 407,773
Net Unreimbursed Project Costs ' $ 407,773
Qutstanding Long-term Debt at December 31, 2013 _ g -

In accordance with the TID statutes, this annual financial summary should be made available to the public with
coples belng submitted to Door County, Sturgeon Bay Schools, and the Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.




2,

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Sturgeon Bay Utilities

A condensed income statement showing the results of operations for the year ended December 31 2013,

:ncludlng a comparison to 2012 follows:

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Other

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance
Deprecialion
Taxes
Transfer for tax equivalent

20113 Operating Income

2013 PSC Operating Income

2013 PSC Rate of Return

Effeclive Date of Rates

2012 Operating Income

Sumrmary comments:

The operating. income of the above analysis derived from the financial statements Is lower than the PSC

amount primarlly due to depreciation on contributed plant, which is not used in PSC calculated amount.

Water |  Electric Sewer | Total |
$ 1,008,729 $ 15,681,551  $ 2,034,150 § 19,714,430
71,183 302,497 14,752 388,432
2.069,012 15,984,048 2,048,902 20,102,862
1,236,962 13,471,196 1,237,535 15,945,693
401,827 1,038,411 446,584 1,886,822
26,182 204,012 15,448 245,642
343,501 425,679 - 769,180
2.008,472 15,130,298 1,600,567 18,847,337
$ 61440 § 844750 $ 349335 $ 1255525
$ 201401 $ 982,572 N/A
3.06% 6.30% NA
§113 B 11112
$  (44876) § 842728 $ . 442,939
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CITY of STURGEON BAY STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

SBU

STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

Stephen McNeil, City Administrator James M. Stawicki, General Manager
421 Michigan Street : . 230 East Vine St

Sturgeon Bay, Wi 54235 Sturgeon Bay, Wi 54235
920-746-2900 Phone 920-746-2820 Phone

920-746-2905 Fax : : 920-746-2822 Fax
www.sturgeonbaywi.org www.sbunet.com

Aprit 24, 2014

Schenck SC

2200 Riverside Drive
P.O. Box 23819 _
Green Bay, Wl 54305-3819

- This representation letter Is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the City of Sturgeon Bay,
Wisconsin (the "Clty"), which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental acfivities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of December 31, 2013, and the respective
changes In the financial position and where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes fo the
financial statements for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in
all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S.

GAAP). -

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are considered |
material, regardiess of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, in light of
surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would
be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in
amouni could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. ' :

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of April 3, 2014, the following representations made to you during
your audit. ' .

Financlal Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated Januéry 27, 2014,
including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and for preparation of
the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criterla. . '

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented In conformity with U.S. GAAP and inciude all properly
classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and all component units required by
.. generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

3. Inregards to accounting estimates:

« The measurement processes used by management in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and
consistent. '

e The assumptions appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action.

» The disclosures related to accounting estimates are completé and appropriate.

1




10.

11.

» No subsequent event has occurred thét would require adjustment to the accounting estimates or disclosures
inciuded in the financial statements.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentat:on of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due io

fraud or error.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to prevent and
detect fraud.

Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates are reasonable.

Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expendituresf/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements, and guarantees and amounts receivable from or payable to related partles have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requarements of U.S. GAAP,

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. No events, including instances of noncompllance have cceurred
subsequent to the batance shest date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure

in the aforementioned financial statements,

We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been posted to the City's
accounts.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims or assessments or unasserted claims or
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements, and we have not consulted a

lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Cily Is contingentiy liabls, if any, have been properly recorded or
disclosed.

Information Provided

12.

13.

14.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters,

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.
¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

d.. Minutes of the meeﬁngs of the City Council and Utility Commission or summartes of actions of recent meetings for
which minuttes have not vet been prepared

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected In the financial statements.

We made an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. We
have disclosed the results of our assessment as follows: _

a. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the City and involves:

i. Managemeni, _
ii. Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
ii. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

b. We have no knowlaedge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the City's financial statements
communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

2




16.

16.

17.

We have disclosed to you all known Instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered when prepating financial
statements.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims or
assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed In the financial statements, and we have not consulted a
lawvyer concerning tlgation, claims, or assessments.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the City s related partles and all the related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware.

Government - specific

18.
19.

20.
21,

22.
23,

24,

25.

26.

27.
23,

29,
30.

31,

We have made available to you all financial records and related data.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or deficiencies in,
financial reporting practices.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the audit
objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommandations, as well as our planned
corrective actions, for the report,

The City has no plans or intentions that may malerially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, liabllities,
deferred Inflows/outflows of resources, or equity. .

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements
applicable io us, Enciudmg tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have identifled and disclosed to you all laws,
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts, or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal
and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

Thete are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations {(including those pertaining to
adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and
any related debt covenants whose effects shotld be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a
hasis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance,

As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related notes, and state financial

report. We have designated an individual with suftable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee your services and

have assumed all management responsibilities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responszb:!tty for those
financial statements and related notes, and state financial report.

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets nor has
any asset been pledged as collateral except as disclosed in the annual financial report..

The Ci{y has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the financial
statements in the event of noncompliance. L

‘We have followed all applicable jaws and regulations in adopting, approving, and amending budgets.

The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with-an equity interest, and properly

disclose all other joint ventures and othet related organizations.

The financial statements properly classify ali funds and activities.




32,

33,

34.
35.

36.
37.
- 38.

39,

40.

41.

42.

43,

44,

45.

46,

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are identified
and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly important to financial statement

users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) and components of fund
balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned) are properly classified and, if applicable,
approved,

Provisions for unco[lectable receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of activities,
and allocations have been made oh a reasonable basls,

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues and general revenues.
interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.

Depaosits and investment securities and denvatwe transactlons are properly classified as to risk and are propetly
disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if applicable,
depreciated. ' '

We have appropriately disclosed the City’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources
when an expense is Incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net posifion is available and have

determined that net position were properly recognized under the policy.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSl is measured and
presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from
those used In the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

We acknowledge our responsibliity for presenting the nonmajer fund combining statements, individual fund
statements, and supporting schedules, {the supplementary information) in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe the supplementary information, including its form
and content, is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.  The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information have not changed from
those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. _

We agree with the findings of specialists Iiv evaluating the other post-employment benefits and have adequately
considered the qualifications of the specialist in determining the amounts and disclosures used in the financial
statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists
with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any_
matters that have had an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

The fact that the amount of “uncolfateralized” deposits or “uninsured, unregistered securities held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the City's name” during the period significantly exceeded the amounts in
those categories as of the balance sheet was praperly disclosed in the financial statements.

Arrangements with financial institutions involving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or securities lending agreements,
compensating balances, or other arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances and ling-of-credit or similar
arrangements, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements.

The methods and significant assumptions used to determine fair values of financial instruments are as follows: Fair
value is the amount at which a financlal instrument could be exchanged in a current fransaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The methods and significant assumgptions used result in a measure
of fair value appropriate for financial statement imeasureament and disclosure purposes.




47.

48,

48,

50.
51.

52.

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors for transactions arising on or
before the balance sheet date and have been appropriately reduced to thelr estimated net realizable value.

Capital assets have been evaluated for impairment as a resuit of significant and unexpected decline in service utility.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and OPEB fiabilities and costs for
financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

We do not plan to make frequent amendmenis to ouf pension or other post-retirement henefit plans.

Expenditures of federal awards were below the $500,000 threshold in the year ended December 31, 2013, and we
were not required to have an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We have evaluated and classified any subseqguent evenls as recognized or nonrecegnized through the date of this
letter. No events, including instances of nancompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned financial
statements.

Signed:

James StawickiC <.
City Administrator 8SBU General Manager

Signed: g e, Signed: /Rﬁ%é@é /

Valarie Clarizio _ “Laurle Bauldry
Finance Director/Clty Treasurer SBU Accountant
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the City Council
City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin
("the City") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statemen_ts as listed in the tahle of contents.

Management s Respons:b.-hty for the F.-nanc:ai Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatxon of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentatmn of fmanclal
statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Respotisibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
- the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance
-about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audil also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a basis for our audlt
opinions.




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial slatements referred to abave present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial pesition
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

Other Maiters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of employer contributions on pages
3 through 11 and 48 through 489 be presented toc supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries; the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The financial information listed in the table of contents as supplementary

" information and the other information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comiparing and reconeiling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. [n our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Financial Information

We have previously audited the City of Sturgeon Bay's 2012 financial statements, and our report dated Apn] 11,

2013, expressed unmodified opinions on those respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the

business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information. In our opinion, the
-summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, is
" consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Repqrting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 3, 2014, an our
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ophenchift

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
April 3, 2014
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

As management of the City of Sturgeon Bay, we offer readers of the City's basic financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2013 by $83,705,031 (net position). Cf this
amount, $13,378,209 (unrestricted net positiony may be used {o meet the City’'s ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors.

The City's total net position increased by $1,711,238. Several factors contributed to the overall increase as
follows:

o The City's Governmental activities' iotal net position decreased by $392,264.
o The City's Business-type activities’ (Solid Waste Fund) total net position decreased by $101,746,
o The City's total net position of Sturgeon Bay Utilities increased by $2,205,248.

The City's general fund increased by $361,503 primarily due fo staff reorganization, allocation of staff tmeto
other funds, and conservative spending in saveral other expense line itams.

The assessed property tax rate, without TID, increased from $6.98 to $7.06 per $1,000 of property value for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

As of December 31, 2013 the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $8,234,540,
a decrease of $1, 426 884 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 31% of this total amount, $2,540,110
is available for spending at the City's discretion (unassigned fund balancs).

As of December 31, 2013, unassigned fund batance for the general fund was $2,847,883, or approximately 28%
of the total general fund expenditures budgeted for 2014.

The City's total general-obligation debt decreased by $294,494 (2%) during 2013. The key factor in this decrease
was the routine retirement of debt in accordance with the debt schedules.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is infended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial
statements, and 3} notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
‘addition to the basic financial statements themselves.




Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statemerits are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City's finances, in 8 manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents infarmation on all of the Gity's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as net position. Over time, Increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most recent year.
All changes in net position are reported as scon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardfess of
the timing of related cash flows, Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacalion leave.)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all ora
significant partion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental aclivities of
the Cily include general government, public safety, public works, sanitation, health and human services, culture and
recreation, conservation and development, debt service and capital outlay. The business-type activilies of the City include
the Solid Waste Fund and Sturgeon Bay UHility activities including water, wastewater and electric operations.

The government-wide financial statements include only the City itself (known as the primary government).
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12 - 14 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or obiectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds,

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities In the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the City’s near-term financing requirements. :

It is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a recongiliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.




The City maintains eight individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balarices for the
General Fund and Tax Incremental District #2 Fund each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other
six governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its governmental funds. As part of the basic governmental fund
financial statements, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general fund and for each individual,
major special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 15 - 21 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise
funds to account for its Solid Waste Fund and Utility, /nternal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City does not use internal service funds at this time.
Because this/these service(s) predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide finrancial statements.

Proprietary funds pravide the same type of information as the government-wide finangial statements, only In more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Utility, which is considered to be a major
fund of the Clty, and the Solid Waste Fund which is considered to be'a nonmajor fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 25 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for rescurces held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not gvailable to support the City's own programs, The accounting used for fiduciary funds Is much like
that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional Information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial
statements can be found on pages 26 - 47 of this report.

Other mformat.'on The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combmmg statements and schedules can be
found on pages 50 - 57.




Government-wide Financial Analysis

Net Position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $83,703,091 at the close of 2013.

City of Sturgeon Bay's Net Fositlon

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities . Total

. 2013 2012 2013 | 2012 2013 2012
Current and other assets $ 29,439, 408 $ 31,337,317 | § 10,902,973 | § 10,098457 | § 40,342, 381 $ 41,435774
Capital assets 52,452,165 53,534,596 40,603,932 39,198,426 93,056,097 92,733,022

Total assets $ 81,801,573 | % 84,871,913 | $ 51,506,905 | § 49,296,883 | § 133,398,478 | $ 134,168,798
Deferred outflows of resources $ 4530368 0 - % - 1% .- §. - 4530368 -
Long-term liabilities outstandmg 26,725,383 25,989,847 475,227 403,544 27,200,610 26,393,381
Other liabilities 13,032,062 15,757,138 | 2,214,752 21799151 . 15,246,814 | = 17,937,053

Total iiabilities $ 30,757,445 1% 41,746,985 {5 26890701 $. 25834590 § 42447424 |3 44,330,444
Deferred inflows of resources $ 7,699,058|8% 7,844558(8% - $ - $ 7,699,068 |3% 7,844,559
Net positlon: : i )
invested in capital assets, net . s

of related dsbt $ 26,277,565 | § 25,685,627 | § 40,162,613 | $ 38,836,882 { § 66,440,078 | § 64,622,509
Restricled 3,364,391 4,002,907 521,353 520,856 ] 3,885,744 4,523,763
Unrestricted 5,246,149 5,691,835 8,133,060 7,355,686 13,379,209 12,047,521

Total net position 1% 34,888,105 § 35,280,360 | § 48,816,926 | § 46,713,424 | § 83,705,031 | $ 81,993,793

By far the largest portion of the City's net position (79%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,

machinery and equipment, infrastructure, etc.) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still

outstanding. The City uses these capital assets fo provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although, the City's investment iri .its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used teo liquidate these liabitities.

An additional portion of the City s net position {5%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($13,379 209) may be used to meet the Cily's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.




Change in net posmon Governmental activities decreased the City's net position by $394 204, Key elements of this

decrease are as follows:

City of Sturgeon -Bay's Change in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenues: i
Program revenues B : o
Charges for services 1% 010,778 % 003.134 | § 20,483,870 | § 20,065,752 | $ 21,304,654 [ § 20,068,886
Operating grants and -
contributions 592,502 503,945 - - 592,502 593,945
Capital grants and contributions 604,610 635,254 612,566 819,960 1,217,176 1,455,214
General reveniues;. : S o i
Property taxes 7,585,889 7,228,943 - 150,000 7,565,980 7,378,943
Other taxes 218,402 226,542 - - 218,402 228,542
Grants and contributions not i : i
- restricted to specific programs 955,142 971,398 - - 965,142 971,398
Otiher revenues - 1,005,137 043,996 (472,997) (513,939) 532,140 - 430,057
Total revenues T 11,852,560 | § 11,503,212 { $ 20,623,445 1§ 20,621,773 % 32,476,005} % 32,024,985
Expenses - - _
General government $ 1,807865F 1771166 {8 - 1§ T % 1.807,665|% 1,771,168
Public safety - 4,362,509 4,222,119 - - 4,362,509 4,222,119
Public works 2,933,553 3,312,425 - - 2,933,553 3,312,425
Culture and recreation . 1,146,212 086,366 - - 1,146,212 086,366
Conservation and development 879,647 506,706 - - 879,547 508,706
Interest on long- term debt 1,115,338 1,143,066 - - 1,115,338 1,143,066
“Water - - 1,664,971 1,671,785 1,664,971 1,671,785
Wastewater - - 1,699,567 1,641,112 1,699,567 1,641,112
_ Electric - - 14,713,836 14,486,055 14,713,836 14,486,055
| Solid waste R - - 441,569, 805,429 441,569 805,429
.|Total expenses 5 12,244,824 | $ 11,041,848 | $ 18,619,043 1% 18,604,381 [ § 30,764,767 | $ 30,546,229
Increase {(Decrease) in net position - (392,264} {438,636) 2,103,502 1,917,392 1,711,238 1,478,756
Net position - January 1 35,280,369 35,719,005 46,713,424 44,798,032 81,993,793 80,515,037
Net position - December 31 $ 34,888,106 | § 35,280,369 $ 48,816,026 [ § 46,713,424 | § 83,705,031 1% 81,993,793

The property tax levy increased by $78,570 (1.4%), without TID, for the 2013 collection year.

toward the following areas:

$ 96,615
$ 131,955
$ - (150,000)

for the General Fund Operations and Debt
for Capital Improvements
for Solid Waste Fund

This increase was directed

" Investment earnings Increased/{decreased) in the following funds primarily due to increasingly low interest rates and
maintaining slightly lower fund balances:

$ (3,967) General

o] (4) Capital Fund
$ (11 Tourism Fund
§ (2,693)
$ (143)
$ (44)
$ (295)

Tax Incrament District #2
Tax Increment District #1
Tax Increment District #3
Revolving Loan Fund

The City realized a one-time loss of $203,929 on the sale of land and capital assets.




Funding Sources for the governmental activities and business-type activities for the City of Sturgeon Bay and

Sturgeon Bay Utilities

The Chart on the right
Hlustrates how governmental
activities are funded. Property
taxes and other taxes account
for 65.68% of the total revenue
needed to fund governmental
activities. Intergovernmental
‘revenues and grants comprise
another 18.16%, while charges
for services and all other
sources are equal fo 16.16% of
revenues. '

Business-Type
activities depend on
charges for services as.
their primary revente
sources, as shown on
the graph to the feft.
Charges for services
account for 95.76% of
the revenues needed fo
support the Cliy’s
business activities.




F_Enanciai Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term infiows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year. '

As of December 31, 2013, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $8,234,840, a
decrease of $1,426,884 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 31% of this amount ($2,540,110) constitutes
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the City's discretion. The remainder of fund balarice is
restricted or assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been restricted or
assigned for the following:

$ 1,125 Prepaid items
2,502,444 Restricted for other Governmental Funds
3,191,161 Assigned for Governmental Funds

$ 5694730 Total

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $2,947,883. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned general fund balance represents 28% of total
2014 budgeted General Fund expenditures, and the total general fund balance also represents 31% of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City's general fund increased by $361,503 during the current year. Key factors in this increase
are as follows: '

e Staff reorganization
* Reallocation of staff time to special funds

® Insurance and other expense savings

The Capital Improvements Fund has a total fund balance of $2,369,069. The entire amount is assigned. Assigned fund
balance represents 152% of total 2014 budgeted Capital Fund expenditures. The Tax Incremental District #2 Fund has a
total fund balance of $1,735,196 and the Tax Incremental District #3 Fund has a total fund balance of $610,752. The TID
District fund balances are restricted to carry out the project plan of the Districts.

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the City's government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Utility fund at the end of the year amounted to $8,164,178. The total increase In net
posit’ion was $2,205,248. . :

Unrestricted net position of the Solid Waste fund at the end of the year amounted to ($52,389). The total decrease in net
position was $101,746. _ o

Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-
type activities. :




Budgetary Highlights

In generally, the original budget is rarely modified. In most instances, when the budget is modified, the line item
adjustments are made within the department. Following is a list of budget adjustments that were made in 2013 where the
adjustments were made between different departments:

1} The amount of $3,694.95 was transferred from Parks Department - Machinery (capital) to Police Department -
Vehicles (capital) to purchase a vehicle.

2} The amount of $3,000.00 was transferred from General Fund — Contingency (operating) to Parks Department ~
Miscellaneous Contractual (operating) for the Maritime Museum sign.

DUring the year, actual general fund revenues were more than'budgeted revenues and appropriated balances by $81,744
prior to applying budgeted appropnated halances and reserves. The 2013 budget contained $1,713,542 in appropriated
balances and reserves, :

Actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $1,937,678 in the general fund primarily due to lack of
appropriations from the ERP contingency, savings realized due to the staff reorganization, and reallocation of staff time to

special funds.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
December 31, 2013 amounts to $93,098,097 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets

- includes land, land improvements, buildings, machinery and equipment, vehicles, public domain infrastructure (highways
and bridges), and construction in progress. The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets for the current
year was $323,075 or roughly .35% compared to last year,

Major capital assets acquired or constructed during the year include:

- One Squad Car
Annual Storm Sewer Outlay.
Annual Road Resurfacing and Repair.
Annual Alley/Parking Lot Repair,
Annual Curbing & Sidewalk Repair.
[nstallation of Athletic Field Lighting.
Replaced water and sewer main on North 4" Avenue.
Replaced altitude valves at the Redwood and Duluth elevated tanks.
Purchased a new water service vehicle.
Renovated the Industrial substation and purchased a new substation transformer.
Rehuilt or replaced multiple underground and overhead electric circuits throughout the City.
Continued assessment and replacement of substandard manholes on the City's west side.

10




City of Sturgeon Bay's Capital Assets
(Governmental Activities are net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities _ Total
i 2013 - 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Land $ 6032968 |5 6274318|% 318,085|% 318085|% 6,351,053 (% 6,592,403
Land improvements 717,866 844 111 - - 717,866 844,111
Buildings - 6,567,818 6,803,047 6,207,535 6,200,824 12,775,353 13,004,771
Machinery and equlpment '

and vehicles . 1,649,029 1,706,881 18,277,080 16,984,860 19,926,109 18,601,741
Infrastructure i 37,242,822 37,776,155 47,435,116 45,238,249 84,677,938 ] . 83,014,404
LCess: Utiity and solid waste '

fund depreciation . o - - (32,015,377} ({30,685,680) (32,015,377) {30,685,680)
Construction in progress i 241,662 129,184 423,493 1,184,088 665,155 - 1,313,272
Total - $ 52,452,165 | § 53,034,596 | § 40,645,932 | % 30,240,426 [ $ 93,008,007 {5 92,775,022

Long-term debt. Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $26,659,957 of this amount,
$15,059,957 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government and $11,600,000 is debt which is

expected to be pald by Tak Incremental Districts.

City of Sturgeon Bay's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Debt and Revenue Bonds
Governmental =~ Business-type
Activities Activities ' Total
_ _ o 2013 L2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
General obligation.debt: ] : : :
"Bonds $ 13,320,000 { § 13,540,000 | § N - |$ 13,320,000 | $ 13,540,000
Notes 1,254,600 1,408,960 | 463,419 403,544 7,738,010 1,812,513
Total general obligation deht $ 14,574,600 | § 14948960 [ 5 48341915 403544 |$ 15,058,018 |% 15,352,613
Lease Tevenue bonds _ - 11,600,000 | 12,900,000 o - - 11,600,000 12,900,000
Total $ 76,174,600 | § 27,848,960 [$ 4834105 403544 | $ 26,658,019 | § 28,752,513

The City’s total debt decreased by $1,594,494 during the current fiscal year. The key factor in this decrease was primarily
due to the retirement of TID #2 lease revenue bonds.

The Sturgecn Bay Utility has no outstanding debt as of December 31, 2013.
The City malntains an Aa3 rating from Moody's Investors Service for its general obligation debt.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the City may issue to 5% of its total equalized valuation. The
current debt limitation for the City is $40,684,920, which is significantly in excess of the City's $1 5 058 01 9 in outstanding

general obligation debt.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
+ The economic condition and outlook of the City has remained fairly stable based on a relatively healthy mix of
ranufacturing, tourism, service industry and retail activities which support our tax base.
« inflationary trends in our region compare favarably to national indices.
During the current year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund increased to $2,947,883. The City has
assigned fund balance in the amount of $416,547 for spending in the 2014 fiscal year budget.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an intersst in the

City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Finance Director/City Treasurer, City of Sturgeon Bay, 421 Michigan S,
Sturgeon Bay, W1 54235.
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~ CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013
{(With summarized financial information as of December 31, 2012)

Governmental | Business-type Total
Activities Activities 2013 | 2012
ASSETS : o

Cash and investments $ 11822121 $ 5,744400 $ 17,566,530 § 19,326,406

Receivables '
Taxes _ 15,303,122 - 15,303,122 16,042,709
Accounts 93,287 1,768,514 1,861,801 1,762,917
Special assessments : 726,839 - 726,839 761,519
Loans o 708,266 - 708,266 508,248
Other - 261,177 261,177 92,399

Internal balances - 783,548 {783,548) - -
Due from other governments . 1,100 1,000,000 1,001,100 -
Inventories and prepaid items 1,125 644,855 645,980 783,562
Restricted assets _

Cash and invesiments - . 521,353 521,353 520,856
Investment in Ametican Transmission :

- Company - 1,704,213 1,704,213 1,595,168
Non-utility property - 42,000 42,000 42,000
Capital assets, nondepreciable

Land . 6,032,968 276,085 6,309,053 6,550,403
Caonstruction in progress 241,662 423,493 665,155 1,313,272
Capital assets, deprociable _ '
Land improvements 4,199,839 - 4,199,839 4,199,839
Buildings and improvements 9,819,098 6,207,635 16,026,633 16,019,922
Machinery and equipment 7,476,341 18,277,080 25,753,421 24,192,334
infrastructure - 55,573,208 47,435,116 103,008,414 100,627,909
Less: Accumulated depreciation {30,891,041) {32,015,377) (62,906,418) {60,170,657)
TOTAL ASSETS _ 81,891,573 . 51,506,805 133,398,478 134,168,796
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding 453,036 : - 453,036 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 253,746 1,660,852 1,914,598 2,030,436
Other current liabilities 250,387 84,736 335,123 335,111
Accrued Interest payable 196,823 10,503 207,326 281,833
Due {o other governments : 11,666,271 - 11,566,271 11,006,963
Deposits - 135,088 135,088 152,342
Compensated absences ' _ 764,835 313,227 1,078,062 - 1,071,500
Public benefits payable - 2,154 2,154 1,560
Long-term obligations :
Due within one year 2,451,100 8,192 2,459,292 2,157,308
Due in more than one year 24,274,283 475,227 24,749,510 26,393,391
TOTAL LIABILITIES _ 39,757,445 2,689,979 - 42,447,424 44,330,444
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES _
Property taxes . 7,671,151 - 7,671,151 7,565,113
Grants 27,908 - . 27,908 289,446
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,699,069 - 7,899,059 7,844,559
NET POSITION o
Net investment in capital assets 26,277,565 40,162,613 66,440,078 64,522 509
Restricted for ' - '
Capital improvements 2,502,444 521,353 - 3,023,797 3,664,060
Loan program : 861,947 - - 861,947 859,703
Unrestricted o 5,246,149 8,133,060 . 13,379,209 12,947,521
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 34,888,105 $ 48,816,926 - § 83,705,031 $ B1,993,793

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STURGEQN BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities .
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
{With summarized financial informaticn for the year ended December 31, 2012)

: Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions | Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities _
General government $ 1807665 $ 174,608 $ - % =
Fublic safety 4,362,509 526,431 85,966 286,536
Public works 2,933,553 13,219 489,075 277,113
Culture and recreation - 1,146,212 190,393 17,461 40,961
Development 879,547 6,127 - -
Interest on debt 1,115,338 - - -
Total Governrmental Activities 12,244,824 910,778 592,502 604,610
Business-type Activities -
Water utility 1,664,971 2,069,993 - 34,262
Sewer utitity 1,699,567 2,060,030 - {335)
Electric utility 14,713,836 16,014,030 - 578,639
Solid waste utility 441,569 339,823 - -
Total Business-type Activities 18,519,943 20,483,876 - - 612,566
Total Primary Government $ 30,764,767 $ 21,394,654 § 592502 § 1,217,176

General revenues

Taxes

Properiy taxes, levied for general purposes
Properly taxes, levied for capital projects

Other taxes

Federal and state grants and other contributions -

not restricted to specific functions

interest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Salvage on disposal of capital asset
Gain (loss) on sale of capital asset

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - January 1

Net position - December 31

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities 2013 [ 2012

$ (1,833,057) $ - § (1,633,057) § (1,609,301)
(3,463,576) - (3,463,576) (3.489,754)
{2,154,146) - (2,154,146) (2,451,895)
(897,327) - (897,397) (613,720)
(873,420) - (873,420) (501,779)
{1,115,338) - (1,115,338) (1,143,0866)
(10,136,934) - {10,136,934) {9,809,515)
- 439,284 439,284 513,199

- 360,128 . 360,128 460,241

- 1,878,833 1,878,833 1,812,247
- {101,746) {101,746) (504,356)

- 2,576,499 2,576,499 2,281,331
{10,136,934) 2,576,499 (7,560,435) (7.528,184)
5,220,405 - 5,220,405 5,273,790
2,345,584 - 2,345,584 2,105,153
218,402 - 218,402 226,542
955,142 - 955,142 971,398
31,106 204,195 235,301 241,926
204,851 8,060 212,911 206,854

' - 83,828 83,928 -
- - - (18,723)

769,180 (769,180) - -

. 9,744,670 {472,997) 9,271,673 9,006,940
(392,264) 2,103,502 1,711,238 1,478,756
81,893,793 80,515,037

35,280,369

46,713,424

$ 34,888,105 §

48,816,926 $ 83,705031 § 81,993,793
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
: December 31, 2013
(With summarized financial information as of December 31, 2012)

Tax Other
" Incremental | Governmental
General Fund | - District #2 Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 6387441 § 1,871,673 § 3,563,107
Receivables ' :
Taxes 12,910,255 1,125,719 1,267,148
Accounts : 16,425 25,335 51,527
Special assessments 726,839 - -
Loans - - 708,266
Due from other funds 1,397,013 - 2,589
Due from other governments 1,100 - -
Inventories and prepaid items 1,125 - -
TOTAL ASSETS § 21,440,198 § 3022627 § 5592637
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities .
Accounts payable $ 252862 % - 5 884
Accrued payroll liabilities 250,387 - -
Due to other funds o - 161,712 454,342
Due to other governments 11,566,271 S -
Total Liabilittes 12,069,520 161,712 455,226
Deferred Inflows of Resources :
Property taxes _ 5,278,284 1,125,719 1,267,148
Grants - - - 27,908
Special assessments - .- 728,830 - -
Loans receivable E : N - 708,266
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,005,123 - 1,125,719 2,003,322
Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Inventories and prepaid items _ 1,125 - -
Restricted for capital improvements - 1,735,196 767,248
Assigned for subsequent year expenditures 416,547 _ - 2,774,614
Unassigned 2,047,883 - (407,773)
Total Fund Balances 3,385,555 1,735,196 3,134,089
TOTAL LIABILITITES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOQURCES, AND FUND BALANCES § 21440198 § 3,022,627 $ 55602637

{Continued)
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_ Total
Governmental Funds

2013 | 2012

$ 11,822,121 $ 13,101,689
15,303,122 16,042,709
93,287 213,573
726,839 761,519
708,266 508,248
1,399,602 832,700

1:100 -
1,125 1,190
$ 30055462 $ 31,461,628
$ 253746 § 395511
250,387 258,793
616,054 124,311
11,566,271 11,906,963
12,686,458 12,685,578
7,671,151 7,555,113
27,908 © 289,446
726,839 761,619
708,266 508,248
9,134,164 . 9,114,326
1,125 1,190
2,502,444 4,002,907
3,191,161 2,963,307
2,540,110 2,694,320
8,234,840 - 9,661,724

$_ 30,055,462

$ 31,461,628
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet (Continued)
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2013

(With summarized financial information as of year ended December 31, 2012)

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position
Total Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net position are
dlf‘ferent because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Some special assessments and loans used in governmental financing activities
are unavailable financial resources and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Some ligbilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds..

Bonds and notes payable

Lease revenue bonds

Deferred charge on refunding

Compensated absences

Other post-employment benefits

Bond premium

Accrued interest on long-term obhgations _

Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported on the Statement of Net Position

{see page 12)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2013 | 2012

$ 8,234,840 $ 9,661,724

52,452,165 53,534,506

1,435,105 1,269,767

(14,574,600)  (14,948,969)

(11,600,000)  {12,800,000)
453,036 -
(764,835) (756,730)
(388,846) (298,186}
{161,937)

(196,823) (281,833}

$ 34888105 $ 35,280,369




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

{(With summarized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Tax Other
_ Incremental- { Governmental
General Fund | District #2 Funds
Revenues : '
Taxes $ 5438807 $§ 1,236,736 $ 1,108,848
Speclal assessments - - 34,681
Intergovernmental 1,613,691 3,105 299,923
Licenses and permits 124,078 - 124,140
Fines and forfeits 51,819 - 6,974
Pubilic charges for services 214,550 - 6,000
intergovernmental charges for services 461,638 - -
Commercial 47,157 - _ -
Miscellaneous 97,034 3,116 460,746
Total Revenues 7,948,774 1,242,857 2,041,312
Expenditures
Current :
General government 1,375,268 - .
Public safety - 4,011,397 - -
Public works 1,454,109 - -
Culture and recreation 716,645 - -
Deavelopment - 324,944 25,981 690,688
Debt service :
Principal 403,500 1,755,855 1,680,000
Interest and fiscal charges 122,486 940,936 62,268
Capital outlay - 153,784 1,694,540
Total Expenditures 8,408,349 2,876,556 4,137,496
Excess of Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures (459,575) {1,633,589) (2,096,184)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Long-term debt issued 1,735,000 3,685,000 1,836,924
Premium on debt issued 51,838 110,099 -
Payment to refunded escrow agent (1,780,022} ~ {3,753,014) -
Sale of capital assets - 3,000 104,469
Transfers in 827,367 326,422 147,024
Transfers out (13,108) . (44,281) (474,247)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 821,078 327,226 1,614,170
MNet Change in Fund Balances 361,503 (1,308,373) (482,014)
Fund Balances - January 1 3,004,052 3,041,668 3,616,103
Fund Balances - December 31 $ 336556565 % 1735196 & 3,134,089

{Continuad)
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Total
Governmental Funds

2013 | 2012
$ 7,784,391 $ 7,455,485
34,681 109,652
1,816,719 1,666,063
248,218 231,004
58,793 66,791
220,550 211,859
461,638 468,123
47,157 43,933
560,896 734,515
11,233,043 10,987,425
1,375,268 1,616,298
4,011,397 3,939,759
1,454,109 1,451,902
716,645 769,027
1,041,613 872,261
3,849,355 2,861,715
1,125,680 1,168,533
1,848,324 2,117,334
15,422,401 14,796,820
(4,189,358)  (3,809,404)
7,256,924 2,815,000
161,937 28,208
(5,533,036) .
107,469 364,896
1,300,813 2,209,284
- (531,633)  (1,590,895)
2,762,474 3,916,493
(1,426,884) 107,089
9,661,724

9,554,635

$ 8234840 § 9,661,724
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(With summarized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities

Net Change in Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported for governmental activities in tho statement of activities are

different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, In
the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital assets reported as capital outlay in governmental
fund statements
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities
Amount by which capital outlays are greater (less) than depreciation
in current period

In governmental funds the entire proceeds, if any, from the disposal of
capital assets is reporied as an other financing source. In the statement
of activities only the gain (o loss) on the disposal is reported,

Loss on disposition reported on the statement of actlwties :
~ Book value of assets disposed

Certain employee henefi ts are reported in the governmental funds when
amounts are paid. The statement of activities reports the value of benefits
garned during the year. This year the accrual of these benefits
{increased) by: :

Some capltal assets acquired and debt retired during the year were financed
with debt. The amount of the debt is reported in the governmental funds as

a source of financing. In the statement of net position, however, debt constitutes
a long-term liability. The amount of debt reported inthe governmental funds

statement is:

Repayment of principal on long-term debt Is reported in the governmental funds

as an expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term-debt in the

statement of net position and does not affect the statement of aclivities. The

amount of long-term debt principal payments in the current year is:

Governmental funds report the effect of premium, discounts, deferred charges
on advance refundings, and similar items when debt s first issued, whereas

these amounis are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of Iong -term

debt and related items.

Interest payments on outstanding -debt are reported in the governmental funds
as an expenditure when paid, in the statement of activities interest is reported .

as it accrues.

Gove_rnmenta] funds do not record revenues that are not available to pay

current obligations, In contrast, such revenues are reported in the statement

of actlvities when earned.

Rehabilitation loans that are deferred in the fund statements are recognized

- as revenue in the statement of activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported in the
Statement of Activities {see pages 13 - 14)

The notes to the basic financlal statements are an integral part of this statement,
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2013 L2012 |

$ 1,054,382
{(1,597,177)

$ (1.426,884) $ 107,089

(542,795) 76,973

(539,636) {671,860}

(98,765)  {109,406)

(7.256,924)  (2,815,000)

8,931,203 2,861,715

291,099 -

85,010 (3,104)
(34,680) (92,441)
200,018 207,398

{392,264 438.636




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeits
Public charges for services

Intergovernmental charges for services

Commercial
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

- Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Development
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General obligation debt issued
Payment to refunded escrow agent
Transfers in '

Transfers out _
Total Cther Financing Sources {Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - January 1

Fund Balance - December 31

Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
_ Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original | Final Amounts {Negative)
$ 5446780 $ 5446780 $ 5438807 $ (7,973)
1,484,900 1,484,900 1,513,691 28,791
119,955 119,955 124,078 4,123
65,000 65,000 51,819 (13,181)
200,335 200,335 214,550 14,215
461,640 461,640 461,638 (2)
43,870 43,870 47 157 - 3,287
44,550 44,550 97,034 . 52,484
7,867,030 7,867,030 7,948,774 81,744
3,020,291 3,017,201 1,375,268 1,642,023
4,039,990 4,043,685 4,011,397 32,288
1,582,925 1,582,925 1,454,109 128,816
801,890 801,195 716,645 84,550
358,065 358,065 324,944 33,121
412,577 412,577 405,431 7,146
130,288 130,288 120,655 9,733
10,346,026 10,346,026 8,408,349 . 1,037,677
(2,478,996) -~ (2,478,996) (459,575) 2,019,421
- 1,786,838 1,786,838 -
- {1,786,838) {1,780,022) 6,816
827,367 827,367 827,367 -
{13,105) {13,105) {13,105) -
814,262 814,262 821,078 . 6,816
(1,664,734) {1,664,734) 361,503 2,026,237
- 3,004,052 3,004,052 3,004,052 -
$ 1339318 $ 1,339,318 $ 3365555 $ 2026237

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2013

{With summarized financial information as of December 31, 2012)

The notes fo the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Enterprise Funds
Nonmajor
Sturgeon Bay Utilities _ Fund Solid Total
_ Sewer Utility | Water Utility | Electric Utility Waste 2013 | 2012
ASSBETS : '
Cash and investments $ GB70,030 § 451,598 $ 4,622,781 § - $ 5744400 § 6,224717
Recelvahles
Accounts _ 128,908 106,579 1,443,027 - 1,768,514 1,549,344
Other 93,450 2,527 165,200 - 261,177 92,399
Due from other funds 411,399 1,046,521 - - 1,457,920 1,322,034
Due from other governments 250,000 250,000 500,000 - 1,000,000 -
Inventories and prepaid expenses 8,627 86,846 549,382 - 644,855 782,362
Restricted assets
Cash and invesiments 521,353 - - - 521,353 520,856
Investment in American Transmission o
Company . _ - - 1,704,213 - 1,704,213 1,595,168
Non-utility property - 42,000 - - 42,000 42,000
Capita} assets, nondepreciable _
Land ' 85,170 80,840 100,075 - 276,085 276,085
Constructicn in progress 200,359 13,100 210,034 - 423,493 1,184,088
Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings 2,596,393 1,563,800 2,047,252 - 6,207,535 6,200,824
“Machinery and equipment 6,889,021 2,643,811 8,295,704 448,544 18,277,080 16,984,860
Infrastructure o 10,165,823 15,132,038 22,137,257 - 47,435,116 45,238,249
Less: Accuriulated _
depreciation {10,726,113) (7,461,262} (13,760,701) (67,30%1) (32,015,377) (30,685,680)
TOTAL ASSETS 11,304,420 14,048,486 28,014,224 381,243 53,748,373 51,327,308
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 169,114 28,679 1,459,546 3,513 1,660,852 1,634,825
Accrued interest - - . - 10,503 10,503 -
Other current liahilities 12,043 12,204 57,685 2,704 84,736 76,318
Due to other funds - h p o
municipality - 343,501 425,679 . - 769,180 708,389
Due to other funds - - 1,457,920 14,368 1,472,288 1,322,034
Deposits - - 135,088 - 135,088 152,342
Compensated absences 39,822 40,652 232,753 - 313,227 314,770
Public benefits payable - - 2,154 - 2,154 1,560
Long-term obligations :
Due within one year - - 8,192 - 8,192 ) -
Due in more than one year - - 71,683 403,544 475,227 403,544
TOTAL LIABILITIES © 220,979 425,126 3,850,710 434,832 4,931,447 4,613,882
NET POSITION (DEFICIT) _ ' _
‘Net investment in capital assets 9,220,653 12,014,415 18,949,746 (22,301} 40,162,513 38,836,882
Restricted for . ' o '
Capital projects 521,353 - : - - 521,353 520,856
Unrestricted . 1,341,435 1,608,045 5,213,768 (31,088) 8,133,060 7,355,686
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 11,083,441 §$ 13,623,360 . § 24,163,514 $  (53,389) § 48,816,926 $ 46,713,424




Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Electric charges

Water charges

Wastewater charges

Solid waste charges
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Operation and maintenance

Depreciation
Taxes

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
Proprigtary Funds '
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

{With summarized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Enterprise Funds

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interest income

Merchandising and jobbing

Interest expense
Property taxes
Miscellaneous income

Salvage on disposal of asset

Loss on sale of asset

‘Total Nonoperating Revenues

income {Loss) Before Contributions

and Transfers

Capita] contributions
Transfers out

Change in Net Position
Net Position - 'January 1

Net Position (Deficit) -
December 31

Nonmajor
- Sturgeon Bay Utilities Fund Solid Total
Sewer Utility | Water Utility | Electric Utllity Waste 2013 | 2012
$ - 5 - $ 15681551 § - § 15,681,551 § 15,400,522
- 1,998,729 - - 1,998,729 1,870,006
2,034,150 - - - 2,034,150 2,069,586
. - - . 298,896 208,896 296,173
14,752 71,183 302,497 40,927 429,359 403,772
2,048,902 2,069,912 15,984,048 - 339,823 20,442,685 . 20,049,059
1,237,535 1,236,962 13,471,196 386,198 16,331,801 16,417,778
446,584 401,827 1,038,411 44,868 1,931,690 1,928,366
15,448 26,182 204,012 - 245,642 258,001
1,609,567 1,664,971 14,713,619 431,066 18,500,223 18,604,235
349,335 404,941 1,270,429 (91,243) 1,933,462 1,444,824
6,921 4,398 192,876 - 204,195 204,515
11,128 81 29,082 - 41,191 16,693
. - (217) (10,503) (10,720) (146)
- - - - - 150,000
8,060 - - - 8,060 8,658
83,928 - - - 83,928 -
- - - - - (18,723)
110,037 4,479 222,641 (10,503) 326,654 360,997
459,372 409,420 1,493,070 (101,746) 2,260,116 1,805,821
(335) 34,262 578,639 - 612,566 819,960
- (343,501) (425,679) . (769,180} (708,389)
459,037 100,181 1,646,030 (101,746) 2,103,502 1,017,392
10,624,404 13523179 22,517,484 48,357 46,713,424 44,796,032

$ 11,083,441 §$ 13,623,360 § 24,163,514 §

(53,389) § 48,816,026 $ 46,713,424

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
‘Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
(With summarized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from user.charges
Cash received from other charges
Cash payments lo suppliers
Cash payments to employees for operating payroll
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activilies

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Pald to municipality for tax equivalent
Loan to local school district
Property taxes
Advance from other fund
Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Noncapital
Finarcing Activities

Sturgeon Bay
Ulilities

Nonmajor
Fund
Solid Waste

Total

2013 |

2012

$ 19,300,822 $ 208,896 $ 19608,718 $ 19,753,108

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of capital assels

Proceeds from sale of capital assels

Interest payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from debt issue

Principal payments on long-term debt

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Increase in ATC investmeant
Investment income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Dacrease) in.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31

Noncash Noncapital Financing Activities:
Developer financed additions to utility plant

{Continued}

437,683 40,927 478,640 429,123
(14,704,582)  (382,685) {15,087,267) (15,254,081)
(1,186,302) 10,721 (1,175,581)  (1,337,382)
3,856,621 (32,141) 3,824,480 3,690,768
(769,180) - (769,180} (708,389)
(1,000,000) - (1,000,000} -
. . - 150,000

. 14,368 14,368 -
(1,769,180) 14,368 (1,754,812) (558,389)
(2,713,784) - (2,713,784)  {2,780,544)
- - - 45,000

(217) (10,503) (10,720 (146)
81,923 - 81,923 403,544
(2,048) - {2,048) -
(2,634,126) (10,503) (2,644,629)  (2,332,146)
(109,045) . (100,045) (130,927)
204,195 - 204,195 . 204,515
95,150 - 95,150 73,5688
(451,535) (28,276)  (479,811) 773,821
6,717,297 28,276 6,745,573 5,971,752
$ 6265762 $ - _ $ 6265762 $ 6,745,573
$ 612,566 _$ - $ 12566 $ 819960

24




CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2013

(With summarized financial information for the year ended December 31, 2012}

tNonmajor

Sturgeon Bay Fund . Total
Utlittes . | Solid Waste | ~ 2013 | 2012

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in} Operating Activities:
.Operating income {loss) $ 2024705 §
Nonoperating revenue 49,251
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss})
to net cash provided by operating activities: o
Depreciation 1,886,822

(91,243) $ 1,933,462 § 1,444,824
- 49,251 25,351

44,868 1,931,690 1,928,366
Depreciation charged 1o other accounts 73,082 - 73,082 138,697
Changes in assets and liabilities: '
Customer accounts receivable (219,170) - {219,170) 60,691
Other accounts recelvable {168,778) - (168,778) 58,093
Inventories and prepaid expenses 137,507 - 137,507 {144,089}
Accounts payable o 22,414 3,513 25,927 30,302
Deposits - (17,254) - (17,254) (10,963)
Accrued and other current liabilities ' 68,991 10,721 : 79,712 70,409
Public benefits payable 504 - 504 {9,045)
Compensated absences payable {1,543) - (1 ,543) {1,868)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activiies ~~ _$ . 3,856,621 § (32141) $ 3824480 § 3,590,768

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to
Statement of Nat Position: .
Cash and investments $ 5744409 %

Restricted cash and investments L 521,353

- $ 5744409 $ 6,224,717
- 521,353 520,856

- % 6285762 $§ 6,745,573

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents : $ 6265762 %

The notes o the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin, ("the City"), have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAF) as applied
to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting principles and policies utilized by the City are described below: '

1.

Reporting Entity .
The City of Sturgeon Bay is @ municipal corporation governed by an elected seven-member council. In

accordance with GAAP, the basic financial statements are required to include the City (the primary
government) and any separale component units that have a significant operational or financial
refationship with the City. The City has not identified any component units that are required to be
included in the basic financial statements in accordance with standards established by GASB Statement
No. 61. :

Jointly Governed Organizations

DooR COUNTY LIBRARY

The City of Sturgeon Bay is a participant with Door County, Wisconsin in a joint venture to operate the Door
County Library. The Door County Library is governed by a seven-member board composed of two
members of the City of Sturgeon Bay Councll and five members appointed by Door County. The City and
County are obligated by agreement to fund one-half of the utllities, janitorial service, insurance, maintenance
and repair and related supplies for grounds, building, its contents and equipment located at the library.
During 2013, the City remitted an appropriation of $72,239 to Door County for the library. The library
building is owned by the City and is included in the capital assets of the governmental activities. Complete

. financial statements for the Door County Library can be obtained from Door County at 421 Nebraska St.

Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin 54235.

DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE

The City of Sturgeon Bay is a participant with all other Door County municipalities in a joint venture to

create the Door County Tourism Zone as prescribed under Wisconsin Statute 66.0615. The Tourism
Zone is responsible for collecting a 5.5% room tax on the gross receipts from retail furnishing of rooms or
lodgings over all of the member municipalities. The Tourism Zone pays 66% of the room tax collected to
the Door County Visitor Bureau, 30% to the member municipalities and retains 4% for its operations.
During 2013, the City of Sturgeon Bay received $137,702 of room tax from the Tourism Zone. Complete
financial information for the Door County Tourism Zone Commission can be obtained from its office in

Sister Bay, Wisconsin.  Reverue receivad is recorded in the general fund of the City. '
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3. Governmeni-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are primarily
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identiiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given funclion or segment and
2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeling the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary funds.
Governmental funds include general, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds.
Proprietary funds include enterprise funds. The City has no internal service funds. Major individual

governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements. : :

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

GENERAL FUND

This is the City's main operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those accounted for in another fund. :

TAX INCREMENTAL DISTRICT NO. 2, WATERFRONT DISTRICT

This fund is used to aécount for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities within the boundaries of the waterfront tax incremental district.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
STURGEON BAY UTILITIES |

This fund is used to account for the operations of the City's water, electric and sewer utilities.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4. Measurement Focus and Basis 6f Accounting _
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liahility is incurred, regardiess of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied, Granls and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered lo be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period, Expendltures generally are recorded when a liabllity Is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related {o compensated absences and
claims-and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental grants, intergovernmental charges for
services, city ordinance forfeitures, public charges for services and interest. Other revenues such as
licenses and perrmits, other fines and forfeits and miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received
in cash or when measurable and available.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are certain charges between the City’s waler, electric, sewer
and solid waste utilities and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort
the direct costs and program revenues reperted for the various functions concerned. Payments in lieu of
taxes are reported as an interfund transfer in the year of payment as the amount is not considered
reasonably equivalent in value to the services provided by the general fund.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1)charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privilages provided, and fees and fines, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operaling revenues and expenses from nonoperaling items. - Operating
revenués and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal engoing operations The principal operating revenues of the
“City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenuses and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Gity's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

HOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5. Assets, Liahilities, Deferred Quiflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position or Fund Balance

a.

Cash and Investments
Cash and investments are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand

. and time deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. Ihvestments are stated at fair

valye. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For purposes of the
statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly liquid investments (including restricted asseis)
with a maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition are considered to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amount w;th uncollectible amounts recognized under the
direct write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is
believed that the amount of such allowance would not be material to the basic financial statements.

interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous fransactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other
funds” and “due to other funds” in the fund financial statements.

The amount reported on the statement of net position for internal balances represénts the residual
balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at cost, which approximates market, using the average cost method,
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time individual inventory items are cansumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
balance amounts to indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

Prepaid ltems
Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current fiscal year are

recorded as prepaid items.

~

Prepaid items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by nonspendable fund
halance amounts {o indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

Other Assets

Investment'in American Transmission Company (ATC)

The utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct,
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns less than 1/2

of 1 percent of ATC.

The investment earns dividends quarterly, 80% of which is paid in cash and 20% of which Is required

- to be reinvested. From time to time, the utility has the option fo coniribute additional funds to

maintain their proportionate share of ownership. The asset is valued at original cost plus additional
contributions and reinvested dividends, which is $1,704,213 at December 31, 2013.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g.

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastruciure assets, are reported in the

applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
staiements. Capital assets for governmental activities are defined by the City as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $5,000 or higher and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Capital assets
for business-type activities are defined by Sturgeon Bay Utilities as assets wilh an initial, individual
cost of $1,000 or higher and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assels are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are hot capitalized.

Capital assets of 'the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives: '

Governmental
Activities
Years
Assets
Land improvements - 15
Buildings and improvements 40
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Infrastructure ' 80 - 100
Business-type
- Activities
Years
Assets -
Electric Plant
Distribution ' 16 - 40
General 3-39
Water Plant
- Source of supply _ - 22-56
Pumping 23-32
Water treatment 19 - 32
Transmission and distribution 18-77
General - 3-24
Sewer Plant
Collecting system 50 - 100
- Collecting system pumping 25
Treatment and disposal 15-40
General 3-40
Solid Waste
Machinery and equipment 5-10
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

h. Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave
benefits in accordance with bargaining unit agreements or employee benefit policy. - Employees may
accumulate sick leave up 1o 100 days pay. Upon retirement, employees may take 50 days of unused
sick leave in cash, except for fire department employees, or apply up to 100 days of unused sick pay
towards health insurance premiums. If an employee leaves for reasons other than retirement all
unused sick leave is forfeited. Sturgeon Bay Utilities’ employees are allowed to accumulate earned but
unused vacation and sick leave benefits in accordance with bargaining unit agreements or employee
henefit policy. Employees are allowed to accumulate up to 125 days of sick leave. Upon retitement,
disabllity or death, unused sick leave credits shall be used for the purpose of payment of health
insurance premiums upon gualified retirement. Qualified retirement means the employee is entitled to
retirement benefits from the Wisconsin Retirement System. The above credit would be reduced by the
percentage reduction in retirement benefits if employee ‘elects early retirement. Vacation and sick
leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A
liabllity for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds in the fund financial statements only
if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

i. Public Benefits
The electric utility charges public benefit fees to all customers as requwed by the 1999 Energy
Reliability Act. Revenues generated from the fees are used to fund energy conservation and low-
income energy assistance ("Commitment to Community”} programs. The utility is acting as an agent
administering the program so receipts and dishursements associated with the program are recorded
as a current liability of the statement of net position.

j. Customer Deposits
The balance represents amounts col[ected from customers who may be refundable based on rules

filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) or statutory requirements.

k. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources {expense/expenditure) untit then. The City currently has
one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred charges on refunding.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two types of items that
* qualify for reporting in this category, property taxes and grants. This amount will be recognized as an
‘inflow of resources in the subsequent year for which it was levied or the related expenditure is
incurred. The City also has an additional type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual
basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report
unavailable revenues from two sources, special assessments and loans receivable. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the amounts become available.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in fhe applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred -and amortized over the life of the bonds. Accounting gains or
losses on refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt,
whichever s shorter. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenses when incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses, Issuance cosis,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures when incurred.

. Eund Equity

(GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund balance of governmental funds Is reported in various categories based on the nature of any
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The following classifications describe
the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be
used:

« Nonspendable fund balance - Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory, prepaid
items, or long-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

+ Restricted fund balance = Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by external parties
(such as grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

= Committed fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by aclion of the
City Council. These constraints can only be removed or changed by the City Council using the
same action that was used to create them.

. Assigned fund ‘balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of City

management. Residual amounts in any governmental fund, other than the General Fund, are also

reported as assigned.

» Unassigned fund balance - Amounts that are available far any purpose. Positive unassigned
amounts are only reported in the General Fund.

The City has not adopted a fund balance spend-down policy regarding the order in which fund
balance will be utilized. When a policy does not specify the spend-down policy, GASB Statement
No. 54 indicates that restricted funds would be spent first, followed by committed funcis and then
assigned funds. Unassigned funds would be speni last.
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CITY QF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Baslc Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND PROPRIETARY FUND STATEMENTS
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

s Net investment in capital assets - Amount of capital asséts, net of accumulated depreciation, iess
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are aitributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

« Restricted net position - Amount of net position that is subject to restrictions that are imposed by
1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other
governments or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

s Unresiricted net position - Net position that is neither classified as restricted nor as net investment
in capital assets.

' Use of Estimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

" the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ

from those estimates.

Summarized Comparative Information

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in {otal,
but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.  Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
government’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, from which the

- summarized information was derived.

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE

1.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial
statements:

4.

During the year, City management submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the
calendar year commencing the following January 1. The operating -budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them. After submission to the governing body, public
hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. Following the public hearings, the proposed budget
including authorized additlons and deletions, is legally enacted by City Council action.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting psinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America for the governmental funds. Budget is defined as the originally approved
budget plus or minus approved amendments. Individual amendments throughout the year weré not
material in relation to the original budget. Budget appropnatlons not expended during the year are
closed to fund balance unless authorized by the governing body to be forwarded into the succeeding
year's budget.

During the year, formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the
governmental funds. ' .
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE (Continued)

d, Expenditures may not exceed appropriations provided in detailed budget accounts maintained for
each activity or department of the City. Amendments to the budget during the year require initial
approval by management and are subsequently authorized by the City Council with a two-thirds
majority vote.

e. Encumbrance accounting is not used by the City to record commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods or services.

The City did not have any material viclation of legal or contractual provisions for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013.

2. Deficit Fund Equity
The following funds had a deficit fund equity as of December 31, 2013;

[ Fund | Deficit |

Solid Waste - $ 53,380
TID'No. 4 $407,773

The deficit will be financed with future revenues of the funds.

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1. Cash and |nvestments
The City maintaing various cash and invesiment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for
use by all funds. Each fund's portion of these accounts is displayed in the financial statements as "Cash
and invesiments."

Invested cash consists of deposuts and mvestments that are restricted by Wisconsin Statutes to the
following:

Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securlties Issued by federal, state and local
governmental entities; statutorily authorized commercial paper and corporate securities; and
the Wisconsin local government investment pool.

The carrying amount of the City's cash and investments totaled $19,792,096 on December 31, 2013 as
summarized below:

Petty cash and cash on hand ' $ 900

Deposits with financial institutions o 6,616,461
Other investments

Wisconsin local government investment pool o 8,141,969

Negotiable FDIC insured CDs 3,328,553

Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC) 1,704,213

$ 19,792096

Recongiliation to the basic financial stélements:

Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

Cash and investments - $ 17,566,530
Restricted cash and investments 521,353
Investment in American Transmission Company {ATC) 1,704,213

$ 19.792,096

Deposits and investments of the City are subject to various risks. Presented below is a discussion of the
specific risks and the City's policy related to the risk.
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Notes to Bagic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE C - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an ouiside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a {ransaction, a government
will nol be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another parfy. Wisconsin statutes require repurchase agreements to be fully collateralized by bends or
securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government or its instrumentalities. The City does not
have an addltlonal custodial credit risk policy.

Depaosits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for the combined amount of all time and savings
deposits and $250,000 for interest-bearing and noninierest-bearing demand deposits per official
custodian per insured depository institution. Deposits with financial institutions located outside the State
of Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for the combined amount of all deposit
accounts per official custodian per depository institution. Also, the State of Wisconsin has a State
Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public depository above the amount
provided by an agency of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively small size of the State
Guarantes Fund in relatlon to the Fund's total coverage total recovery of insured losses may not be
available.

As of December 31, 2013, $1,205,144 of City's deposits with financial institutions were in excess of
federal and state depository insurance. The entire amount was collateralized by the pledging financial
institution or trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

As of December 31, 2013, $3,042,675 of the Utilities' deposits with financial institutions were in excess of
federal and state depository insurance limits. The entire amount was collateralized by the pledging
financial institution or its trust department or agent but not in the Ulilities’ name.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Wisconsin statutes limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City does not have an additional credit risk
policy. At December 31, 2013, none of the investment types maintained by the City was rated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City provides that the City will dwers:fy its investments by security type and
institution. ~ With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and the authcrized local government
investment pool, no more than 50% of the City's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single
security or with a single financial institution.

Iinterest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s Investments to market interest rate
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City's mvestments by

maturity:
__Remaining Maturity (in Months)
12 Months 13to 24 2510 60 More Than
Investment Type Amount or Less - Months Months 60 Months
Wisconsin Local Government . ' .
Investment Poot $ 8,141,969 $ 81418698 $ - $ - $ -
Negotiable FDIC insured CDs 3,328,553 3,228,791 99,762 - -
Totals $ 1 1.....=4 70,622 & 11,370,760 § .. 99762 § - $ -

Investment in Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool

The City has investments in the Wisconsin local government investment pool of $8,141,869 at year-end.
The Wisconsin local government investment pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund (SiF), and is
managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. . The SIF is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutary authority of Wisconsin Chapter 25, The SIF
reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw
their funds in total on one day's nolice. At December 31, 2013, the fair value of the City's share of the
LGIP s assets was substantially equal to the carrying value

Investment in American Transmission Company (ATC)
The Utilities is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan, construct,
maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facnhtles in Wisconsin. The Utilities own less than 1/2

of 1 percent of ATC.

The investment eamns dividends quarterly, 80% of which is paid in cash and 20% of which is required to
be reinvested. From fime to time, the Utilities have the option to contribute additionat funds to maintain
thelr proportionate share of ownership. The asset is valued at original cost plus additional contributions
and reinvested dividends, which is $1,704,213 at December 31, 2013.

2. Restrlcted Assets
Restricted assets on December 31, 2013 totaled $521,353 and consisted of cash and :nvestments held

for the following purposes:

Enterptise Fund
Wastewater replacement account . § 521,353

The utility has established an equipment replacement account to be used for significant wastewaler _
treatment mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources as a condition to receiving construction grants.

3. Property Taxes
Property taxes consist of taxes on real estate and personal property. They are levied during December of

the prior year and become an enforceable lien on property the following January 1. Property taxes are
payable in various options depending on the type and amount. Personal property taxes are payable on or
before January 31 in full. Real estate taxes are payable In full by January 31 or in two equai Installments
on or before January 31 and July 31. Real estate taxes not paid by January 31 are purchased by the
County as part of the February tax setllement. Delinguent personal property taxes remain the collection
responsibility of the City,

The City bllls and collects its own property taxes and also levies and collects taxes for the Sturgeon Bay,
Southern Door and Sevastopol School Districts, Door County, Northeast Wisconsin Technical Colliege and
the State of Wisconsin,
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4, Capital Assets _ _
Capttal asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning ' Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated: '
Land $ 6274318 & $ 241,350 § 6,032,968

Construction in progress 129,184 - 178,966 66,488 241,662

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 6,403,502 178,966 307,838 6,274,630
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 4,199,839 - - 4,199,839
Buildings 9,819,008 - - 9,819,098
Machinery and equipment 7,207,474 351,375 82,508 7,476,341
Infrastructure . 55,388,660 524,041 340,403 55,573,298
Sublotals 76,616,071 875,416 422,911 77,068,576
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvemenis 3,355,728 126,245 - 3,481,973
Buildings 3,015,151 236,129 - 3,261,280
Machinery and equipment 5,500,593 374,251 47,532 5,827,312
infrastructure . 17,613,505 860,552 143 581 18,330,476
Subtotals _ : 29,484 977 1,597,177 191,113 30,891,041
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 47,131,094 (721,761) 231,798 46,177,535
Governmental activities capital assets, net § 53,534,508 § §542!795! . g 539!636 52,452,165
Less related long-term debt outstanding ' 26,176,538
Net investment in capital assets ' $ 26275627

Business-type activities: :
Capltal assets, not being depreciated:

Non-utility land $ 42,000 $ - 8 - $ 42,000
Land ) 276,085 - - 276,085
Construction in progress 1,184,088 .. 53,881 814,476 423,493
~ Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,502,173 53,881 814,476 ‘741,578
Capital assets, being depreciated: .
Buildings : 6,200,824 18,306 11,695 6,207,535
Machinery and equipment 16,984,860 1,464,785 172,565 18,277,080
infrastructure 45,238,249 2,483,921 287,054 47 435,116
Subtotals 68,423,833 3,967,012 471.214 71,919,731
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Wastewater utility 10,461,210 457,506 192,603 10,726,113
Electric distribution utility 13,028,788 973,438 241,525 13,760,701
Water utility 7,173,249 409,027 121,014 7,461,262
Solid waste 22 433 44 868 - 67,301
Subtotals 30,685,680 1,884,839 555,142 32,015,377
Total capital assets, being deprociated, net 37,738,253 2,082,173 (83928) 39,004,354
Business-type activities capital assets, net § 39240 426 g 2,'] 36,054 & 730,548 40,645;9_32
Less ralated long-term debt outstanding 483.419
Net investment in capital assets $ 40162513
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Depreciétion expense was charged to functions of the City as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ . 195642
Public safely 182,763
Public works 1,062,860
Culture and recreation 155,912
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities § 1,597177

Business-type actMtles

Sewer $ 446,584
Water _ 401,827
Electric 1,038,411
Solid waste 44 868
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 3 1,931,690

Change to accumulated depreciation includes mcreases (e.g. salvage va[ue) and decreases (e.g. cost of
removal) of disposed capital assets.

5. Interfund Receivabie, Payables, and Transfers
Interfund receivables and payables between individual funds of the City, as reported in the fund fmancnal
statements, as of December 31, 2013 are detailed below:

* - Interfund | Interfund
Receivables | Pavables

Operating Accounts Between Funds

General Fund $1,397,013 § -
Water Utility - 343,501
Electric Utility : ' - 425,679
Capital improvements ' 2,589 -
Tax Incremental District #2 - 161,712
Tax Incremental District #3 - 5,458
Tax Incremental District #4 - 406,889
Revolving Loan ' - 41,995
Solid Waste - 14,368
Totals $1,399,602 § 1,399,_6£2_
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Transfers to:

General fund
Capital improvements

TID No. 2
TID No. 3
Totals

Transfers to:

General fund

" TID No. 2
TID No. 3
. Totals
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Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Transfer from:

o General | Sturgeon Bay
Totals Fund Utilities Cable TV
$ 827,367 § - % 769,180 % 4,500
15,694 13,105 - -
326,422 - - -
131,330 - ' - -
§ 1,800,813 § 13105 $ 769,180 § .. 4500
Transfer from:
_ Tax Tax
Revolving |incremental] Incremental
. Loan District #1 District #2
$ 11995 § - $ 41,692
Capital improvements _ - - 2,589
. - 326,422 -
- 131,330 -
$ 11995 $ 457752 % 44281

Transfers are used to (1) move unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various
programs accounted for in other funds in. accordance with budgetary authorizations, and (2) move
revenues from the fund that is required to collect them to the fund that is required or allowed 1o expend
_ them (3) transfer the annual tax equivalent to the municipality.

Due from Other Governments

During the year, the Utilities issued a short-term note receivable to the Sturgeori Bay School District in the
amount of $1,000,000. The note carries an interest rate of 0.45% and matures on October 23, 2014. The
note receivable is allocated to each of the utilities as detailed below:

Sewer utility

Water utility

Electric utility

Total note receivable
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7. Long-term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations of the City for the year ended

December 31, 2013:

Qutstanding

Due Within

Qutstanding
11113 Issued Retired 12131113 One Year
Governmental activities: ' :
General Obligation Debt

Bonds . $ 143,540,000 $ 7,475,000 $ 7395000 $ 13,320,000 % 860,000

Notes 1,408,069 81,924 236,293 1,254,600 241,100

Total General Obligation Dabt 14,948,969 7,256,924 7,631,293 14,574,600 1,101,100
{ease revenue bonds 12,900,000 - 1,300,000 11,800,000 1,350,000
Compensated absences 756,730 8,105 - 764,835 - -
Post-employment benefits 298,186 103,660 13,000 388,846 -
Premium on refunded debt - 161,937 - 161,937 -
Governmental activities _ '

Long-term obligations $ 289003,885 $ 7,530,626 $ 8944293 § 27490218 $ 2,451,100
Business-type activities:

General Obligation Debt :

Nota $ 403,544 & 81,923 $ 2,048 % 483,419 § 8,192
Compensated absences 314,770 6,620 - 8,163 313,227 -
Business-type acfivities '

Long-term obligations $ 718,314 % 88,543 § 10,211 § 796,646 $ 8,192

Total interest paid during the year on long-term debt totaled $976,248.
General Obligation Debt .

General obligation debt outstanding is detailed as follows:

General Obligation Bonds

$2,620,000 issued 6/1/05; $50,000 to $300,000 due 2009 through 2021;

interest 3.5% to 4.1% $ 440,000
$2,695,000 issued 6/1/05; $100,000 to $200,000 due annually through 2025;

inferest 3.25% to 4.3% 255,000
$3,220,000 issued 6/1/06; $175,000 to $295,000 due annually through 2021;

interest 3.25% to 4.0% 725,000
$1,985,000 issued 9/1/11; $980,000 and $1,005,000 due 2021 and 2022, respectively,

- interest 2.35% to 2.55% 1,988,000
$2,815,000 issued 7/5/12; $75,000 to 1,050,000 due annhually 2013 through 2023;

interest .7% to 2.5% 2,740,000
$1,755,000 issued 10/22/13; $60,000 to $1 15,000 due annually 2014 through 2033;

interest 2.625% to 4.625% 1,755,000
$1,735,000 issued 12/30/13; $15,000 to $190.000 due annua!ly 2014 through 2025;

interest 2.0% to 3.0% 1,735,000
$1,620,000 issued 12/30/13; $20.000 to $285,000 due annually 2014 through 2021; :

interest 2.0% to 3.0% 1,620,000
$585,000 issued 12/30/13; $585 000 balloon payment dua 10/1/2018;

interest 2.0% 585,000

$1,480,000 issued 12/30/13; $20 000 to $295,000 due annually from 2014 through 2021;

interest 2.0% to 3.0%
Total General Obligation Bonds

(Continued)
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General Obliqation Notes

$417,132 Issued 11/14/05; $14,523 to $33,401 due annually through 2025; interest 5% 310,787
$31,563 issued 1/31/08; $1,087 to $2,502 due annually through 20286 interest 5% 23,281
$158,476 issued 5/11/06; $4,978 to $12,024 due annually through 2026; interest 5% 118,579
$75,383 issued 9/21/06; $795 to $6,078 due annually through 20286; interest 5% 59,939
$13,675 issued 4/16/09; $2,896 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 2,896
$44,953 issued 6/26/09; $9,528 due in 2014 interest 3.50% _ 9,528
$23,827 issued 6/26/09; $5,050 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 5,050
$12,996 issued 6/26/09; $2,755 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 2,755
34,253 issued 9/8/09; $1,138 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 1,138
$119,145 issued 9/8/09; $31,880 due In 2014; interest 3.50% - 31,889
$46,750 issued 1/8/10; $12,373 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 12,373
$13,070 issued 1/8/10; $3,459 due in 2014; interest 3.60% 3,459
$26,216 issued 1/8/10; $6,939 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 6,939
$43,978 issued 2/11/10; $3,921 to $5,812 due annually through 2019; interest 4.50% 31,326
$11,402 issued 2/11/10; $3,008 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 3,008
. $12,000 issued 1/26/10; $3,171 due in 2014; interest 3.50% ‘ 3171
$13,783 issued 2/11/10; $3,636 due in 2014; interest 3,.50% 3,636
$6,000 issued 1/26/10; $1,585 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 1,585
$77.770 issued 2/11/10; $20,519 due in 2014; interest 3.50% 20,519
$30,000 issued 8/24/10; $2,500 to $3,558 due annually through 2020; interest 4.50% 18,018
$107,842 issued 8/19/11; $20,588 to $22,659 due annually through 2016; interest 3.25% 65,864
$52,000 issued 8/19/11; $9,927 to $10,925 due annually through 2016; interest 3.25% 31,759
$5,000 issued.8/19/11; $1,116 due in 2014; interest 3.25% 1,116
$5,970 issued 8/19/11; $1,140 to $1,254 due annually through 2018, interest 3.25% 3,646
$22.197 issued 8/19/11; $4,238 to $4,664 due annually through 2016; interest 3.25% 13,857
$4,450 issued 8/19/11; $383 to $514 due annually through 2021; interest 3.76% 3,629
$980 issued 8/19/11; $84 to°$113 due annually through 2021; interest 3.75% 799
$1,541 issued 8/18/11; $133 to $178 due annually through 2021; interest 3.75% 1,257
$625 issued 8M19/11; §54 to $72 due annually through 2021; interest 3.75% 510
$7,395 issued 8/19/11; $637 to $855 due annually through 2021; interest 3.75% 6,030
$12,898 issued 8/19/11; $1,110 to $1,490 due annually through 2021; interest 3.76% 10,518
$4,495 issued 8/19/11; $386 to $519 due annually through 2021; interest 3.75% 3,666
$5,970 issued 8/19/11; $514 to $690 due annually through 2021; interest 3.75% o 4,868
$19,000 issued 11/2/11; $1,900 due annually through 2020; interest 3.6% . : 15,200
$26,820 issued 11/2/11; $2,682 due annually through 2020; interest 3.6% 21,457
 $164,214 issued 11/2/11; $16,421 due annually through 2020; interest 3.6% ' 131,372
-$75,000 issued 11/2/11; $7,500 due annually through 2020; interest 3.6% 60,000
$162,000 issued 11/2/11; $16,200 due annually through 2020; interest 3.6% 129,600
$403,544 issued 12/18/12; $95,403 to 105,265 due annually from 2014 through 2017;
interest 2.60% _ 403,544
- $163,848 issued 9/30/13; $12,288 to $16,384 due annually from 2014 through 2023;
non-interest bearing 159,750
Total Generat Obligation Notes Payable 1,738,019
Total General Obligation Debt ' $ 15058019
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Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt of $15,068,019 on
December 31, 2013 are detailed below:

Year Ended Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities .- Totals

December 31 Principal | Interest Principal | Interest Principal .| Interest
2014 $ 1,101,100 § 381,700 § 5192 § - $ 1,109,202 § 381,700
2015 976,300 375,200 103,695 12,493 1,078,895 387,603
2016 998,600 339,400 108,385 7.704 1,106,985 347,104
2017 961,300 308,500 110,875 5,213 1,072,175 314,713
2018 1,488,700 285500 113,457 2,832 1,602,157 288,132

2019-2023 7,822,800 940,700 38,915 - 7,661,815 940,700
2024-2028 901,800 217,200 - - 901,800 217,200
2029-2033 524,800 74,100 - 524,900 74,100

-$.14,574,600 52,9 3,300 $ 483419 $28042 §$ 15068019 § 2951342

For governmental activities, the other long-term liabilities are generally funded by the general fund.

Legal Margin for New Debt
The City's legal margin for creation of addmonaE general obligation debt on December 31, 2013 was

$25,626,901 as follows:

Equalized valuation of the City $ 813,698,400
Statutory limitation percentage ' {x) 5%
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the '

‘Wisconsin Statutes 40,684,920
Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation : {15,058,019)

Legal. Margi_n for New Debt § 25626901

Advance Refunding
During 2013, the City advance refunded general obligation bond issues from 2005 and 2006. The City .
issued $5,420,000 of general obligation refunding bends to. provide resources to purchase U.S.
Government and Local Government Series securities that were placed 1n an irrevocable trust for the
purpose of generating resources for all future debt service payments of the refunded debt. As a result,
the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed from the financial
statements. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next
11 years by $245,793 and to obtain an economic gain {difference between the present value of the debt
service payments of the refunded and refunding bonds) of $225,932.

At December 31, 2013, $5,070,000 of outstanding general obligation bonds and notes are considered
defeased.
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Lease Revenue Bonds
Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding lease revenue bonds of $11,600,000
December 31, 2013 are shown below:

Governmental Activities

Dué Principal | Interest | Total
2014 $ 1,350,000 § 497,100 § 1,847,100
2015 1,405,000 443,100 1,848,100
2016 1,465,000 385,500 1,850,500
2017 1,530,000 324,700 1,854,700
2018 1,600,000 - 259,700 1,859,700

2018-2021 . 4,250,000 344,400 4,594,400

$ 11,600,000 §$ 2254500 § 13,854,500 -

The above leases require TID No. 2, Waterfront District to make annual payments equal to the principal and
interest payments on the debt incurred to finance plan projects.

Conduit Deht Obligations _

The City has Issued Industrial Revenue Bonds fo provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for
the acquisition and construction of commaercial facilities deemed to be in the public inferest. The bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from. payments received on the underlying
mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance, Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in
the accompanying basic financial statements.

NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATIOH

1.

Retirement Commitmenis

All eligible City employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system. All employees initially employed
by a participating WRS employer prior to July 1, 2011, expected to work at least 600 hours a year and
expected fo be employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire, are eligible to participate in
the WRS. All employees initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and
expecled to work at least 1200 hours a year and expected to be employed for at least one year from
employee's date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.

Effective the first day of the first pay pericd on or after June 29, 2011, the employee required contribution
was changed to one-half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for employees in the General
category, including Executives and Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective employees are
the same rate as general employees. Employers are required to confribule the:remainder of the
aciuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required contribution
unless providedfor by an existing coliective bargaining agreement. Contribution rates are as follows:

2013 _
Emplovee - Employer
General 6.65% 6.65%
Executives & Elected Officials 7.0% 7.0%
Protective with Soclal Security 6.65% 8.75%
Protective without Social Security 6.65% 12.35%
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The payroll for City employees covered by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2013 was
$5,197,348; the employer's total payroll was $5,239,682. The total required contribution for the year
ended December 31, 2013 was $824,377, which consisted of $478,754 or 9.21% of covered payroll from
the employer, and $345,623, or 6.65% of covered payroll from employees. Tatal contributions for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $742,427 and $727,966, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (82 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employees with less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25
years of service) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employees} and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. A final
average earnings is the average of the employee’s three highest year's earnings. Employees terminating
covered employment and submitting application before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights fo any subsequent benefit. For employees
beginning participation on or after January 1, 1980, and no longer actively employed on or after Aprit 24,
1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity.
Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 and prior to July 1, 2011 are
immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011 must have
five years of creditable service to be vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility and the amount of all
benefits are determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes.

The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing to the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, WI 53707-7931.

Other Post-Employment Benefits
Plan Description

The City provides health care insurance coverage for employeas who retire until they reach the age of 65.
The retired employee contributes 100% of the premium for family coverage aor 100% of the premium for
single coverage. There are 68 active and 4 retired employees in the plan,

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB O_blig.ation
The City's annual other post-employment benefit {OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the

annual required contribution (ARC), and the amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial llabilities over a
period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount actually coniributed to the plan, and changes in the Cliy’s net OPEB
obligation.

| Component [ Amount |
Annual required contribution $ 103,660
Interest on net OPEB -
Adjustment to annual required coniribution -
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 103,660

Contributions made (13,000)
Change in net OPEB obligation ' 90,660
OPEB obligation - beginning of year 298,186
OPEB obligation - end of year $ 388,846
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The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the January 1, 2011
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 4.0%
discount rate.

The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effect of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of asseis, consistent with a long-
term perspective of the calculations. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
dollar amount of projected payroll. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2013 is 30 years,
and the remaining amount is $678,096. The City intends to reduce or eliminate the calculated liability
through benefit modifications.

Trend Information
The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net QPEB obligation for 2012 and 20‘1 3 is as follows:

Percentage
Fiscal = - Annual of Annual
Year OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation.
12/31/12 $ 99,554 8.04% $ 298,186
123113 103,860 12.5% 388,846

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the City's unfunded actuarial accrued
lizbility (UAAL) was $678,096. The annual payroll for active employees covered by the plan for the 2013
fiscal year was $5,239,682 for a ratso of the UAAL to covered payroll of 13%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future, such as assumptions about
fuiure terminations, mortality, and healthcare cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actuarial results are compared with past experience and new estimates are made
about the future. '

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understoad by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical patiern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan -
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effect of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit eredit method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a rate of 4.0% to discount expected liabilities to the valuation date. The initial
healthcare trend rate was 9.3%, reduced by decraments to an ultimate rate of 4.7% after seventy years.
The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrolls on an open basis. The
remaining amortization pertod at December 31, 2013 was 30 years.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

3. The Wiscansin Public Power Incorporated System (WPPI)
The Sturgeon Bay Utilities (the "Utilities”) purchases all of its electric requirements from the Wisconsin
Public Power Incorporated System (WPPI). WPPI is a municipal eleciric company and political subdivision
of the State of Wisconsin created by contfract by its members on September 5, 1980 pursuant to the
Municipal Electric Company Act Sec. 66.073 of the Wisconsin Statutes (the Act). WPP!'s purposes include
providing an adequate, economical and reliable supply of electric energy to its members.

The Utilities is a member of WPPI located throughout the States of Wisconsin, Michigan and lowa. On
December 1, 1989, each of WPPI's members, including the Uiilities, commenced purchasing electric
service from WPPI under a Long-term Power Supply Contract for Participating Members (the Long-term
Contract) under which WPPI has agreed to sell and deliver to each member, and each member has
agreed to take and pay for, the electric power and energy requirements of the members for an initial
thirty-five (35) year term. In 2002, alil WPPl members ratified a thirteen year extenslon to their contracts.
The current contract expires December 31, 2037,

Under the Long-term Contract, the Utilities and the other members of WPPI are required to pay for all power
and energy requirements supplied or made available by WPPI at rates sufficient to cover all of WPPl's
revenue requirement which includes power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt service on
outstanding bonds. WPPI's subseqguent year's rates and operating budgst are approved annualiy by its
Board of Directors, which consists of representatives from each member municipality,. The Utilities have
agreed to charge rates to the retail ratepayers sufficient to meet its obligations to WPPL. The Longterm
Contract provides that all paymenis to WPPI| under the Contract constitute operating expenses of the
Utilities payable from any operating and maintenance fund established by the Ulilities for that system.

The long-term Contract may be terminated by either party upon five years prior written notice effective at the
end of the initial thirty-five year term, of at any other time thereafter, provided that no WPPI bonds are
outstanding at the time of the proposed termination and certain other centract provisions are met:

The electric operation purchases power through Wisconsin Public Power, Inc. System for distribution 1o its
customers. Tolal purchases under this arrangement amounted to approximately $12.05 million in 2013.

4. Risk Management :
The City has purchased commercial insurance policies for various risks of loss related o torts; theft,
damage or destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God. ‘Payments of
premiums for these policies are recorded as expenditures or expenses in various funds of the City. There
have been no selflements in excess of coverage in any of the past three years and there have been no
-significant reductions in coverage from the prior year.
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NOTE D - OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

5. Tax Incremental Districts

6.

The City has established separate capital projects funds for four Tax Incremental Districts (TID) created by
the City in accordance with Section 66.1105 of the Wisconsin Statutes. At the time the Districts were
created, the property tax base within each District was "frozen" and increment taxes resulting from
increases to the property tax base are used to finance District improvements, including principat and interest
on long-term debt issued by the City to finance such improvements. Except for certain exceptions under
Section 66.1105(6)(am)(1), the Statutes allow 15 or 22 years after its creation date for a tax incremental
district to incur project costs eligible for financing from tax increments. The City's four Districts were created
onJanuary 1, 1991, January 1, 1994, January 1, 2008 and January 1, 2013, respectively.

Since creation of the above Districts, the City has provided various financing sources to each TID. Detail of
the amounts recoverable by the City as of December 31, 2013 from fuiure excess tax increment revenues
follows;

| Total [ TIDNo.1 ] TIDNo.2 | TIDNo.3 | TIDNo.4 |

Net (Excess) Unrelmbursed
Project Costs $ 20677914 % (156,496} $19.282390 & 1144247 § 407773

The intent of the City is to recover the above amounts from future TID surplus funds, if any, prioi' fo
termination of the respective Districts. Unless terminated by the City prior thereto; each TID has a statutory
termination year as follows:

Termination
Year
TID No. 1 2028
TID No. 2 2031
TID No. 3 . 2034
TiD No. 4 2040

Contingencies
a. The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are

subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the City's
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount,
if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at
this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

b. From time to time, the City is party to other various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although
the outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of management and
the City Attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings wnll have a material
adverse effect on the City's financial position or results of operations.

Property Tax Levy Limit

Wisconsin state statutes provide for a limit on the property tax levies for all Wisconsin cities, villages,
towns and counties. For the 2013 and 2014 budget years, the increase in the maximum allowable tax levy
is limited to the percentage change in the City's January 1 equalized value as a result of net new
construction. The actual limit for the City for the 2013 budget was 1.11%. The actual limit for the City for
the 2014 budget was .76%. Debt service for debt authorized after July 1, 2005 is exempt from the Ievy
limit. In addition, Wisconsin statutes allow the limit o be adjusted for the Increase in debt service
authorized priar to July 1, 2005 and in certain other situations.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN

Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Post-employment Benefit Plan
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(4)
(2) Unfunded UAAL
Actuarial Actuarial asa
Acluarial (1) Accrued (3) Accrued Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded Liability {5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Unit Ratio {UAAL) Covered Payroll
January 1, Assels Credit (1)/(2) (2)- (1) Payroll 4}/ (5)
2009 - 673,263 0.0% $ 673,263 - N/A N/A
2011 - 678,096 0.0% 678,096 N/A N/A

with retroactive adjustment for pnor years.

The City implemented GASBE Statement No. 45 for the calendar year ended January 1, 2011
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WiSCONSIN
Schedule of Employer Contributions
QOther Post-employment Benefit Plan

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Year Ended Employer Annual Required Percentage
December 31, Contributions Contribution (ARC) Contributed
2011 $ 13,000 % 93,445 13.9%
2012 8,000 99,554 8.0%
2013 13,000 103,660 12.5%

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the calendar year ended
Gecember 31, 2011 with retroactive adjustment for prior years.
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2013

Revolving
Loan Cable TV TID No. 1 TID No. 3
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 195676 $ 251,864 $ 156,496 $ 509,235
Recelvables
Taxes “ - 494,001 8,012
Accounts ' - - - 16,975
Loans 708,266 - - “
Due from other funds o - - - .-
TOTAL ASSETS $ 903942 § 251864 $ 650497 § 624222
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 5 - § - 5 -
Due to other funds ' 41,995 - - 5,458
Total Liabilities 41,995 - - 5,458
Deferred Inflows of Resources _
Properly taxes : - - 494,001 8,012
Grants _ o - - - -
Loans receivable ' o 708,266 - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources ' 708,266 - 494,001 8,012
Fund Balances (Deficit)
Restricted - - 156,496 610,752
Assigned 153,681 251,864 - -
Unassigned ' - _ - - -
Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 153,681 251,864 156,496 610,752
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 903942 $ 251864 $ 650497 $ 624,222
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Total Nonmajor

Capital Governmental

TID No. 4 { Improvements Funds
$ - $ 2,359,836 § 3,563,107
- 765,135 1,267,148
- 34,552 51,527
- - 708,266
- . 2,589 . 2,588
3 - $§ 3162112 § 5592 637
$ 884 § - $ 884
406,889 - 454,342
407,773 - 455,226
- 765,135 1,267,148
- 27,908 27,908
- . - 708,266
- 793,043 - 2,003,322
- - 767,248
- 2,369,069 2,774,614
(407,773) - (407,773)
{407,773) 2,369,069 3,134,089
3 - $ 3162112 § 5592637
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CITY OF STURGEQON BAY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revolving .
Loan Cable TV TID No. 1 TID No. 3
Revenues
Taxes
General properiy taxes 3 - 8 - % 457,752 % 34,201
Special assessments - - - -
Intergovernmental - - 10,165 -
Licenses and permits - 124,140 - -
Fines and forfeits - : - - -
Public charges for services - _ - - -
Interest 14,253 - 329 -
Miscellaneous 114,983 a5 - 508
Total Revenues 129,236 124,226 468,246 34,709
Expenditures
Current
Development 315,015 63,504 - 7.300
Debt service
Principal - - - 1,690,000
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 62,268
Capital outlay - 17,189 - 74,600
Total Expenditures - _ 315,015 80,693 - 1,834,168
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures ' {185,779) 43,532 468,246 (1,799,459}
Other Financing Sources (Uses) _
Long-term debt issued : - - - 1,755,000
 Sale of capital assets - - - 60,000
Transfers in - - - 131,330
Transfers out {11,995) {4,500) (457,752) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) _ {11,995} (4,500  (457,7562) 1,946,330
Net Change in Fund Balances (197,774} 338,032 10,494 146,871
Fund Balances - January 1 : 351,455 212,832 146,002 463,881
" Fund Balances (Deficit) - December 31 $ 153681 § 251864 § 156496 $ 610,752
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Total Nonmajor

Capital Govemmental
TiD No. 4 | Improvements Funds

$ - % 616,895 $ 1,108,848

- 34,681 34,681

- 289,758 299,923

- - 124,140

. 6,974 6,974

- 6,000 6,000

- - 14,582

- 330,588 446,164

- . 1,284,896 2,041,312

304,569 - 690,688

- . 1,690,000

- - 62,268

102,904 . 1,499,847 1,694,540

407,773 1,498,847 4,137,496
(407,773)  (214,951)  (2,096,184)

- 81,924 1,836,924

- 44,469 104,469

- 15,694 147,024

- : - (474,247)
- 142 087 - 1,614,170
(407,773) (72,864) (482,014)

- - 2,441,033 3,616,103

$ (407,773 § 2369068 § 3.134089
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Taxes
General property
Retained sales tax
Payment in-lisu of taxes

Housing authority

Mobile home
Interest on taxes
Room taxes
Total Taxes

intergovernmental

State
Siate shared taxes
State highway aid
Law enforcement
Fire insurance dues
Municipal services
Computer aid
DNR - aids in lieu of taxes
DNR - marine patrol
DNR - recycling rebate

Total Intergovernmental

Licenses and Permits
State seal _
Liguor and malt beverages
Cigarette licenses
Animal licenses
Operator's licenses
Sundry licenses and permits
Building permits

CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
General Fund
Detailed Comparison of Revenues - Budget and Actual -
General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Plumbing and electrical permits

and licenses
Sign permits

Miscellaneous fees and permits

Total Licenses and Permits

Fines and Forfeits
Court fines and penaities

(Continued)

Variance with
Final Budgat
Budget Positive
Original | Final Actual {Negative)
$§ 5,220,405 $ 5,220,405 $ 5220405 $ -
120 120 124 4
19,480 19,490 19,488 (2)
60,000 60,000 60,153 153
765 765 935 170
146,000 = 146,000 137,702 {8,298)
5,446,780 5,446,780 5,438,807 {7,973)
915,110 915,110 915,054 (56) -
468,850 468,850 483,614 14,764
13,150 13,150 44,147 30,997
28,000 28,000 20,063 1,083
6,350 6,350 5,461 (889)
17,500 17,500 24,838 7,338
1,700 1,700 1,980 . 280
9,240 9,240 9,534 294
25,000 25,000 , - (25,000)
1,484,800 1,484,900 1,513,691 28,73
280 280 560 280
29,000 29,000 29,393 393
2,000 2,000 - 2,125 125
420 420 485 65
2,800 2,800 4,285 1,485
1,800 1,800 2,162 362
36,000 36,000 33,786 (2,214)
23,600 23,600 22,289 {1,311)
4,200 4,200 4,500 300
19,855 19,855 24,493 4,638
119,955 119,955 124,078 4,123
65,000 65,000 51,819
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WiISCONSIN

Detailed Comparison of Revenues - Budget and Actual -

Public Charges for Services
Special assessment lelter fee
Recreation
Mooring fees
Sanitation services
Weights and measures
Strest department .
Weed control :
Total Public Charges for Service

intergovernmentat Charges for Services
Fire department fees

Commercial
Rent from commercial property

Miscellaneous
Interest
Inferest on special assessments
Insurance dividends
Private grants
Miscellanecus
Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

General Fund

General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget
Budget _ Positive
Original | Final Actual {Negative)
1,500 1,600 3,020 1,520
148,220 148,220 154,185 5,965
15,000 15,000 14,959 (41)
8,700 8,700 13,284 4,584
6,015 6,015 6,005 (10)
5,400 5,400 10,092 4,692
15,500 15,500 13,005 (2,495)
200,335 200,335 214,550 14,215
461,640 461,640 461,638 (2)
43,870 43,870 47,157 3,287
12,000 12,000 11,695 (305)
550 550 516 (34)
- - 38,843 38,843
15,000 15,000 17,461 2,461
17,000 17,000 28,519 11,518
44550 44,550 97,034 52,484
$ 7,867,030 $ 7,867,030 § 7948774 § 81,744
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
General Fund

Detailed Comparison of Expendiiures - Budget and Aclual -

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Continued)

56

Variance with
Final Budget
- Budget ) Positive
Original i Final Actual (Negative)
General Govarnment ' .

- City council $ 57,465 § 57,465 § 57,284 $ 181
Board of review 1,820 1,820 861 959
Mayor . ) 12,365 12,365 11,718 647
City administrator 222,468 222,468 111,324 111,144
Clerk-treasurer 310,190 310,190 303,551 6,639
Municipal services administration 189,061 189,061 167,754 31,307
Elections 10,719 10,719 9,762 857
Telephone 8,500 8,300 6,377 1,823
Pastage . 9,000 10,000 10,089 (89)
Assessment of property 91,675 91,675 83,125 8,650
Audit ' 17,000 16,600 16,575 25

- Legal 45,000 45,000 41,492 3,508
Special counsel 25,000 25,000 11,768 13,282
City hall 146,821 146,821 122,051 24,770
Propenty and liability insurance 310,407 310,407 286,966 23,441
Unemployment compensation 12,500 12,500 8,404 4,098
Life insurance 11,000 11,000 8,349 2,651
Family assistance program 1,810 1,810 1,810 -
Publication 8,500 8,500 8,154 348
Computer 59,430 65,710 55,370 10,340
Contingency 1,435,850 1,426,570 © 5,000 1,421,570
Maintenance of commercial property 8,000 8,000 5,492 2,508
Miscellansous consultants - - 35,321 {35,321)
Miscellaneous 25,710 25,310 16,671 8.639
Total General Government 3,020,291 3,017,291 1,375,268 1,642,023.

Public Safety
Police department 2,250,975 2,254,670 2,277,546 (22,876)
Police department uniform allowance 900 a00 876 24
Building inspector 64,135 64,135 64,267 132)
Fire department 1,504,005 1,594,005 1,546,225 47,780
Fire department uniform allowance 8,200 8,200 7,491 709
Hydrant rental 121,775 121,775 114,992 6,783
Total Public Safety 4,039,990 4,043,685 4,011,397 - 32,288




Detailed Comparison of Expenditures- Budget and Actuat -

Public Works

Transportation
Public works administration
Street machinery
Garage
Gas and oil
Storm sewer
Curb and gutter
Roadway of strests
Street sweeping
Snow and ice removal
Street lighting
Street signs and markings
Highways

Sanitation :
Garbage and refuse collection
Solid waste site
Weed control

Total Public Works

Culture and Recreation
Library
Celebration and entertainment
Recreation
Municipal dock
Parks and playground
Ball fields
lce rinks
Beaches
Water weed cutting
Total Culture and Recreation

Development
Community development
Waterfront parks and walkways
Development zone administration
Total Development

Debt Service
Principal retirement
Interast and fiscal charges
Total Debt Service

Total Expenditures

CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN

General Fund

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Variance with
Final Budget
Budget Positive
Original | Final Actual - {Negative)
192,210 192,210 182,659 9,551
108,540 108,540 78,348 30,192
57,835 57,835 60,969 (3,134)
85,000 85,000 79,338 5,662
49,785 49,785 19,_10'( 30,678
12,700 12,700 13,339 (639)
161,150 161,150 163,771 {2,621)
37,550 37,550 33,654 3,896
193,645 193,645 217,518 (23,873)
208,455 206,455 174,741 31,714
57,610 57,610 50,675 6,935
327,625 327,625 299,498 28,126
54,630 54,630 50,197 4,433
32,410 32,410 24,493 7,917
5,780 5,780 5,801 (21)
1,682,825 1,582,925 1,454,109 128,816
74,115 74,115 72,239 - 1,876
38,420 38,420 35,421 2,999
144,640 144,640 93,644 50,996
46,780 46,780 39,471 7,309
365,815 365,120 _364;101 1,019
29,195 298,195 33,014 (3,819)
8,615 8,615 4,717 3,858
2,590 2,590 176 2,414
91,720 91,720 73,862 17,858
801,880 801,195 716,645 84,650
277,160 277,160 250,016 . 27144
55,905 55,905 49,928 - 5,977
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
358,065 358,065 324,944 33,121
412,577 412,577 405,431 7,146
130,288 130,288 120,555 9,733
542 865 542,865 . 525,086 16,879
$ 10,346,026 $ 10,346,026 $ 8408349 $ .1037677
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




INDEPENBENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City of Sturgeon Bay
Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Sturgeon Bay’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 3,
2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Sturgeon Bay,
Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting {internaf control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on the effectiveness of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstaternents on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in-internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial stalements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficlency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet importani enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

QOur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not desighed .to identify- all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identifited. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified, We
did identify a certain deficiency in internal’ confrol, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
responses as item 2013-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency,
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audi, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin’s Response te Findings

The City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin's
internai control or cn compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Aplonoste

Certified Public Accountants
Green Bay, Wisconsin
April 3, 2014
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CITY OF STURGEON BAY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Findings and Responses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Section | - Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Finding No. ' Control Deficiencies

2013-001 Preparation of Annual Financial Report

Condition:  Current City staff maintains accounting records which reflect the City's financial
transactions, however, preparing the City's annual financial report, including note
disclosures, involves the selection and application of specific accounting principles which
would require additional experience and knowledge. The City contracts with us and our
knowledge of applicable accounting principles, financial statement formats, and note
disclosures to assist in the preparation of the annual financial report In an efficient manner.

Criteria:  The preparation and review of the annual financial report by staff with expertise in financial
reporting is an internal control intended to prevent, detect and correct a potential omission
or misstatement in the financial statements or notes.

Cause; City management has detefmined that the additional costs associated with training staff to
become experienced in applicable accounting principles and note disclosures outweigh
the derived benefits,

Effect: Without our involvement, the City may not be able to completely prepare an annual
financial report in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America within an expected time frame.

Recommendation: We recommend the City continue reviewing the annual financial report. While it may not
be cost beneficial to train additional staff to completely prepare the report, a thorough
review of this information by appropriate staff of the City Is necessary to obtain a complete
and adequate understanding of the City's annual financial report.

Management Management believes the cost for additional staff time and training to prepare year end
Response: reports outwelgh the benefits to be received. We will continue to review and approve the
financial reports prior to issuance.
Section Il - Compliance and Other Matters
There are no findings related to compliance and other matters that are required to be reported under

governmental auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America for the year ended
December 31, 2013,
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Executive Summary

Title: Chemical Spraying of Aquatic Vegetation

Background: During the 2014 budget process $18,000.00 was allocated for spraying 47
acres of Aquatic Vegetation in the Bay of Sturgeon Bay. The Municipal Services Department
prepared and sent out bid specs as per our purchasing policy. The specs were sent out 10
seven companics and one was returned for our consideration. Stantec, Inc. from Stevens
Point Wisconsin returned a bid of $266.00 per acre or a total cost of $12,499.86 and no
charge for a second application if resprayed within 30 days of initial application.

Fiscal Impacts: $12,499.86 most of this is reimbursed by marina owners

Options: 1) Award contract to Stantec, Inc.
2) Discontinue spray program for 2014

Recommendation: Staff recommends awarding contract to Stantec, Inc. for aquatic
vegetation spraying at a cost not to exceed $12,499.86.

Bob Bordeau
Municipal Services Director

Date: %// -'3/’ /}N 14

Prepared By:

Reviewed By: Ll donce Clarsse Date: I/D1/74

Valerie Clarizio
Finance Director/City Treasurer

Reviewed By: ,&M&M Date: “i‘/ Z/ / o<

Stevbn McNeil
City Administrator




2014

Application of Chemical Herbicides for Control of Aquatic Weeds

COMPANY NAME

ADDRESS

BID AMOUNT

Aquatic Biologists, Inc.

N4828 Hwy 45
Fond du Lac, Wl 54935

Aquatic Engineering, Inc.

P.O. Box 3634
LaCrosse, Wl 54602

Lake and Pond Solutions, LLC

N1025 Julius Drive
Greenville, W1 54942

Northern Environmental
Technologies, Inc.

12075 N. Corporate Parkway
Suite 210
Mequon, WI 53092

KN Services

War50 Sp}i g-Hill Dr.,
Sherwood, Wl 54169

N 20584 La fove DNve
Fence wT S4120

Stantec, Inc.

2841 Stanley Street
Stevens Point, WI 54481

Lﬁgé:boolctﬁu"@., €00 Sacee

LQ"{QQ’ €6 = otal

Jason Wilke

5285 Clarks Lake Road
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INVITATION TO BID
OFFICIAL NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received at the office of the City Clerk of the City
of Sturgeon Bay, 421 Michigan Sireet, Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin 54235, until 3:00 p.m. on
Thursday, April 17, 2014, and will publicly be opened at that location and fime for: '

Application of Chemical Herbicides for the Control of Aquatic Weeds
in selected areas in the Bay of Sturgeon Bay _

Sealed bid proposal envelopes must be marked: “Sealed Bid for Application of Chemical
Herbicides for the Control of Aquatic Weeds.” ]

Bid proposal specifications and other documents may be obtained at the Park and Recreation
office, 835 N. 14" Avenue, Sturgeon Bay, Wi 54235.

The City of Sturgeon Bay reserves the right to reject any or all bid proposals or accept the bid
proposal most advantageous fo the City.

All bidders shall show proof of responsibility in accordance with Section 66.29 (2) Wisconsin
Statutes. Proof of Responsibility shall show sufficient financial ability, equipment and
expetience to properly perform the contract.

Robert W. Bordeau
Municipal Services Director




INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK: The work included in this contract is for the initial application
of chemical herbicides and the secondary applications required if the initial application did
" not control the aquatic weeds present. The contractor will spray the areas noted within and
should be aware that vessels may be docked in place at time of application. Therefore, the
contractor will have fo spray around and under these vessels to ensure proper contact with
the vegefation being sprayed. Chemical fo be used is Reward, Cutrine, or genetic
equivalent, and Surfactant applied as per manufacturer's specifications.

2 BIDDER RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK CONDITIONS AND SITE: Bidders are to inform
themselves of the conditions under which the work is to be performed, the site of the work,
the structure, the grounds, and any obstacles which may be encountered, and all other
relevant matters conceming the work to be performed. The successful bidder will not be
allowed any exira compensation or time by reason of any matter or thing about which
such bidder might have fully informed himself prior to the bidding.

INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENT OBTAINABLE: If any person

4, REQUIREMENTS FOR SIGNING BIDS:

a) Bids which are not signed by the individual making same should have attached
thereto a power of atforney evidencing authority to sign the bid in the name of
the person for whom it is signed. '

b) Bids which are signed for a partnership should be signed by all the pariners or by an
attorney-in-fact. If signed by an atforney-in-fact, there should be attached fo the bid, a
power of attorney evidencing authority to sign the bid, executed by the partners. :

¢} Bids which are signed for a corporation, should have correct corporate name
thereof and the signature of the president or other authorized official of the corporation,
manually written below the corporate name following the word

“By * I such bid is manually signed by an official other than the

president of the corporation, a certified copy of a resolution of the Board of Directors
evidencing the authority of such official to sign the bid should be attached fo it. Such bid
should also bear the attesting signature of the secretary of the corporation and the
impression of thé corporate seal.

5. WHEN AWARD EFFECTUAL: The contract shall be deemed as having been
awarded when formal notice of award shall have been duly served upon the
intended awardee (i.e.), the bidder to whom the City contemplates awarding the
contract by some officer or agent of the City duly authorized to give such nofice.
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11.

WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS: Any bidder may withdraw his bid at anytime prior to the
scheduled time for the opening of bids, but no bid shall be withdrawn without the
consent of the Cily for a period of thirty (30) days after the time of opening or
bids is passed.

QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS PRIOR TQ CONTRACT LETTING: The owner
(City) in contemplating the award of contract may require the following
information from prospective bidders:

a. The bidder's performance record.
b. The address and description of the bidder’s plant or permanent place of business.
C. An itemized list of all equipment expected to be used on the project with.

photographs (if possible). _
d - A description, with references, of pro;ects the bidder has completed in the past five
years.
A complete and current fmanc;al statement.
Certification that the ‘DNR” has approved your operation for applying chemical
 herbicides.
g. Such additional information as will safisfy the owner (Cfty) that the bidder is

adequately prepared fo fulfill the contract.

FORM OF PROPOSAL AND DETERMINATION OF LOW BID: All proposals shall be
made on forms prepared by the City, which are attached hereto, otherwise they may not
be considered. All prices shall be stated in words and in ﬁgures and in cases of conflict,
the wrritten amounts shalf govemn.

CONFLICTS In the event any provision in a contract document is in conflict or
inconsistent with any other paragraph or section, the provision contained in the first
listed document in ARTICLE Iii of the CONTRACT shall govern and the other shall
be void to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency unless specifically stated fo the
contrary.

REJECTION OF BIDS: The City reserves the right to reject without explanation, any

or all bids and to waive any informalities in bidding. Bids must be prepared

according fo the instructions contained in the contract documents. No bid shall

be prepared with a lead pencil; bids so prepared will be rejected without further
consideration. Any/all corrections must be authenticated by the person signing the
proposal/contract; such authentication shall consist of the person’s handwritten initials.

SUBMISSION OF BID: Proposal must be placed in a sealed envelope addressed to the
City Clerk, City of Sturgeon Bay, 421 Michigan Street, Sturgeon Bay, WI 54235,

and plainly marked “Sealed Bid’/Proposal for Application of Chemical Herbicides for
Aquatic Weed Control for the Bay of Sturgeon Bay’”.
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13.

14

15.

Chemical applicator will make available fo the City: Chemical Reward and Cutrine or
generic equivalent , appfication rates, and how much chemical used. The Cilty of
Sturgeon Bay reserves the right fo send along a City representative during the chemical
application. ' ‘

Chemical applicator is responsible for all signage needed, as well as labor to post signs.
The City of Sturgeon Bay will sign properties, if requested by applicator, however, will
charge labor and materials to chemical applicator.

Chemical applicator must keep in contact with City of Sturgeon Bay Municipal
Services Director as fo when first application will be applied. Visual inspection must be
made by chemical applicator before first application to ensure proper timing of first
application. This should ensure adequate weed kill.

RE-INSPECTION OF SPRAY AREAS: Chemical applicator must do a visual inspection

. of spray areas to determine if second application is needed. Written report will be made

{6 the Municipal Services Director as to second spray needs. 20% of bid will be
withheld until second application process is complete. '




DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED WORK

The work fo be done under this contract to include the furnishing of labor, materials, tools and
equipment necessary in performing all operations in connection with chemical appiication of
herbicides in various locations of the Bay of Sturgeon Bay. At the time of application, the proper
chemical, with a weighting agent fo ensure adequate contact with submersed vegetation, will be
determined by the consultant approved by a City representative and the DNR. Chemical to be
used is Reward, Cutrine or -generic equivalent plus surfactant applied as per
manufacturer’s specifications. ‘

The proposal provided by the consultant will include assistance to the City of Sturgeon Bay in
obtaining all applicable permits from the DNR. The consultant will also be required to attend up
to a maximum of two (2) public informational meetings or public hearings as required and held
by the City of Sturgeon Bay. '

The following is a list of the areas to be treated with chemical herbicides. Treatment of these
areas is to be late May to mid-June with the final defermination to be made by the consultant
* and reviewed by the City representative and/or the DNR. The areas include acreage and water
depths based upon 2002 water levels, the acreage shown is the maximum amount to be
treated. The City of Sturgeon Bay reserves the right to withdraw or minimize any or all portions
of the areas listed below at any time. ' ‘

Sawyer Boat Launch - .58  acres. 6°-7’ Average Depth
Sunset Boat Launch 1.00 acres 4’-5’ Average Depth
Stone Harbor Marina 1.30 acres 7’ Average Depth
Door County Maritime Museum - .51 acres 6’ Average Depth
Sturgeon Bay Marina 55  acres 6 Average Depth
Quarterdeck Marina 11.78 acres 5 Average Depth
Purves Lagoon 4.96 acres 5" Average Depth
Asher's Lagoon .45 acres 5" Average Depth
Strawberry Creek 3.20 acres 10" Average Depth
Madelyn Marina ' 1.00 acres 5'-6’ Average Depth
Snug Harbor Marina .91  acres 4’ Average Depth
Harbor Club/Skipper Buds Marina 7.08 acres 9 Average Depth
Center Pointe Marina 3.31 acres 9 Average Depth
Great Lakes Yacht Services 1.37 acres 12’ Average Depth
Harbor Shores af the Bay .75 acres - B Average Depth
Bay Marine-around fuel dock .20 acres 6’ Average Depth
Sturgeon Bay Yacht Club 1.48 acres 6’ Average Depth
“E” Dock-St. Bay Marina (D.Schoft) 1.48  acres - 6" Average Depth

Total Acres: 46.83




GENERAL CONDITIONS

The contract documents consist of the Advertisement Instruction fo Bidders, General
Conditions, General and Specific Specifications, Proposal and Contract, each of which’

1.

const:tutes an integral part of the contract.

CONTRACTOR'’S INSURANCE: The Contractor shaH not commence work under

this contract until he has obtained all insurance required under this paragraph and
such insurance has been approved by the Owner, nor shall the contractor allow any
subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until all simifar insurance
required of the subcontractor has been obtamed and approved

a. Com,oensatfon Insurance: The Contractor shall take out and maintain

during the life of this contract, Worker's Compensatfon Insurance for all of

his employees at the site of the project and, in case of any work is sublet,

the contractor shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Worker's
Compensatfon Insurance for all of the latter's employees unless such

employees are covered by the protection afforded by the contractor. In

case any class of emp!oyees engaged in hazardous work under this contract af
the site of the project is not protected under the Worker's Compeénsation statute,
the contractor shall provide and shall cause for each subcontractor to provide and
shall'cause for each subcontractor to provide adequate insurance coverage for the
protection of his employees not otherwise protected.

. Public Liability and Property Damage 'lnsurahce: The Contractor shall take out

and maintain during the life of this contract such Public Liability and Property
Damage Insurance as shall protect him and any subcontractor pen‘ormmg work
covered by this contract from claims for damages for personal injury, including
accidental death, as well as from claims for property damages, which may arise
from operations under this contract, whether such operations be by himself or by
any subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them
and the amounts of such insurance shall be as follows:

Bodily Injury:

$ 1,000,000 Each Occurrence

$ 1,000,000 Annual Aggregate, Products & Completed Operations
Property Damage:

$ 500,000 Each Occurrence -

$ 1,000,000 Annual Aggregate

Peréonal Injury with Employment Exclusion Deleted:
$ 1,000,000 Annual Aggregate

. Comprehensive Automobile Liability:

Bodily Injury:

$ 1,000,000 Each Person
$ 1,000,000 Each Accident
Property Damage




$ 500,000 Each Occurrence

d. Business Auto Insurance | '
$ 1,000,000 Single Limit for bodily injury and/or Property Damage

e. Excess Umbrella Liabﬂ’itv Insurance:
$2.000,000 Limit of Liability

PROOF OF COVERAGE OF INSURANCE: The contractor shall furnish the owner with
satisfactory proof of coverage of the insurance required. Satisfactory proof shall normally
consist of certificate(s) of insurance. The City of Sturgeon Bay shall be named as an
additional insured.- B .

PAYMENT OF EMPLOYEES: The Contractor and each of his subcontracfors shall
pay each of his employees engaged in work on the project under his contract in full
(less only deductions made mandatory by law} in cash or check and notless than.
once each week. -

A,CCIDENT PREVENTION: Precaution shall be exerciséd at all times for the
- protection of all persons (including employees) and property. All hazardous
conditions shall be guarded against or eliminated. ‘

PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR: Not later than the twentieth (20") day of each
calendar month, the Owner will make payment to the contractor on the basis of a duly
certified and approved estimate of the work performed under this contract, during the
preceding calendar month. To obtain such payment, Contractor must submit
authenticated statement/voucher detailing work completed to Owner not later than

the third (3™ working day of that calendar month. Statements/Vouchers received
after the third (3") working day will be expeditiously processed, however, payment
may be delayed up to thirty (30) days from receipt.

TERMINATION FOR BREACH: In the event that any of the provisions of this Contract
are violated by the Contractor or his subcontractor(s), the Owner may serve writen notice
upon the Contractor of its intention to terminate such contract. Such notice shall contain
the reasons for such intention to terminate the contract, and unless within five (5) days
after serving of such notice upon the Contractor, satisfactory arrangement for correction
be made, the contract shall upon the expiration of said five (5) days, cease and
terminate. '

ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT: The Contractor shall not assign this contract nor
any part hereof, nor any monies due or fo become due hereunder, without the written
consent of the Owner. No assignment of this contract shall be valid unless it shall
contain’ a provision that the funds to be paid to the Assignee under the assignment
are subject to a prior lien for services rendered or materials supplied for the
performance of work called for in said contract in favor of all persons, firms, or
corporations rendering such services or supplying such materials.

SUBCONTRACTING: The Contractor shall not subcontract any work to be
performed in the performance of this contract without the consent of the Owner. If
the Contractor shall sublet any part of this contract, the Contractor shall be fully
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responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his subcontractor, as he is for
the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by himselr.

DEFINITIONS: The following terms as used in this contract are respectively defined
as follows:

a. Contractor: The person, firm, corporation or business entity to whom the within
contract is awarded by the Owner and who is subject to the terms thereof.

b. Subcontractor: The person, firm, corporation or business entity to whom the
within contract is awarded by the Owner and who is subject to the terms théreof.

. ¢.- Owneror City: This is understood to mean the City of Sturgeon Bay,
‘Wisconsin, represented by the Purchasing Agent (City Administrator}.




CONTRACT
THIS CONTRACT made this day of , 20___, by and between

, hereinafter called the “Contractor’, and City of

Sturgeon Bay, hereinafter called the “Owner”.

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and the Owner for the Consideration stated herein agree as
follows: _

“ ARTICLE I, SCOPE OF WORK: The Contractor shall perform everything required fo be
performed and shall provide and furnish alf of the labor, materials, necessary tools, expendable
equipment, and all utility and transportation services required to perform and complete ina '
workmanlike manner all of the work required for the application of chemical herbicides for the
control of aquatic weeds in selected areas in the Bay of Sturgeon Bay. All to be accomplished
in accordance with the Contract documents, including any and all addenda, prepared under the
direction of the Purchasing Agent of said City of Sturgeon Bay, and in strict compliance with the
Contractor’s proposal and the other contract documents herein mentioned which are a parfof
this contract. The Contractor shall do everything required by this contract and other documents.
constituting any part hereof. . “ '

ARTICLE Il, THE CONTRACT PRICE: The Owner shall pay to the Contractor for the
performance of this contract, subject to any additions or deductions provided herein, in current
funds, the contract price computed as follows: '

Payméni‘s are to be made to the Contractor in accordance with, and subject to the. provisions
embodied in the documents made a part of this contract. :

The actual sum to be paid, however,'wiﬂ be the aggregate total determined by the work actually
performed by the Contractor calculated upon the unit prices set out in the Proposal and which
are hereto attached and made a part thereof. )

ARTICLE Ill, COMPONENT PARTS OF THIS CONTRACT: This contract consists of the
following component parts, all of which are as fully a part of this contract as if herein set out
verbatim or,_if_ not attached, as if herefo attached:” '

Advertisement for bids
Instructions to bidders
Contractor Proposal.
General Conditions
Contract

Special Provision

TMOOW>

In the event that any provision in any of the above component parts of this contract conflicts with
a provision in any other of the component parts, the provision component part first enumerated
ahove shall govern over any other component part which follows in numerically, except as may
be otherwise specifically stated. ' :

10




IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed in two
(2) original counterparts the day and year first above written.

(Name of Contractor)

(Seal) By:

Attost (Title)

est:

(Title)
(Tlﬂe) ] 'EEREE]
| CITY OF STURGEON BAY
BY: '

' Mayor

Attest:

Stephen McNeil, City Administrator

RER R KRk

Approved as to form

City Aftomey Date

* kR k kK

" Provision has been made fo pay the !iabilitjf that will accrue under this contract.

Stephen McNeil, City Administrator Date

11




SPECIAL PROVISION

" Project Quantities:

a) Payment for all work shall be based upon the unit prices within this contract.
Final quantities can not be determined until spray areas are approved by
the DNR and a permit issued by them to allow this work.

b) Benefiting property owners will also be able to eliminate area from this
contract, after bids are received, but not affer contractors are signed.

c) - Spray area (attached) .

12
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BID FORM & PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF STURGEON BAY
Bids to be received at City Hall, 421 Michigan St., Sturgeon Bay, Wl 54235 until
Thursday, April 17, 2014 at 3:00 p.m., at which time bids will be opened.

TO: City Clerk, City of Sturgeon Bay
421 Michigan Street
Sturgeon Bay, Wi 54235

The undersigned having familiarized himself with the local conditions affecting the cost of the
work, and having read and examined the Advertisement for Bids, Description of work, Bid Form
& Proposal and locations, hereby proposed to do all the work called for in this proposal and to
furnish all labor, toofs, equipment and materials necessary for the fufl completion of said work in
a workmanlike manner at the sums, rates and unit prices for said work as follows:

The chemical herbicides application for aquatic weed conirof to:
AREA ACREAGE COST/ACRE TOTAL
1. SAWYER BOAT LAUNCH .55
First Application $ $
Additional Application $ $
2. SUNSET BOAT LAUNCH 1.00
First Application ' $ 3
Additional Application $ $
3. MADELYN MARINA 1.30
First Application $ b
Additional Application $ )
4. DOOR COUNTY MARITIME MUSEUM .51
First Application $ $
Additional Application ) $
5. STURGEON BAY MARINA 556
First Application $ $
Additional Application $ $
6. QUARTERDECK MARINA 11.78
First Application $ )
Additional Application $ $
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7. PURVES LAGOON 4.96
First Application

Additional Application

8. ASHERS LAGOON o . 45
First Application

Additional Application

9. STRAWBERRY CREEK 3.20
First Application '

Additional Application

10. LEATHEM SMITH MARINA 1.00

. First Application
Additional Application
11. SNUG HARBOR MARINA 91
First Application

Additional Application

12. HARBOR CLUB/SKIPPER-BUDS ~ 7.08
First Application ' ‘

Additional Application

13. CENTER POINT MARINA 3.31
First Application

Additional Application

14. GREAT LAKES YACHT SERVICES - 1.37
First Application

Additional Application

15. HARBOR SHORES AT THE BAY 75
First Application

Additionaf Application

16. BAY MARINE (around fuel docks) .20
First Application
Additional Application

15




17. STURGEON BAY YACHT CLUB 1.48

First Application $ $
Additional Application $ $
13. “E" DOCK — ST. BAY MARINA 1.48
First Application ' $ 2
Additional Application $ $
Grand Total: $___
Written Grand Total:
Submitted by: _ .
Company Name

16




DATE: 04./25/20145

TIME: 12:48:26
ID: AP443000.C8T

VENWDOR # NRME

CITY GF STURGEON BAY
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFQRE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

GENERAL FUND
GENERAL FUND
REVENUE
ROO08750 GREEN COURTE

MAYOR

FIRST FIRST NATICNAL BANK OF OMAHA

CITY COUNCIL

FIRST FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CMAHA

Ci%Y¥ CLERK-TREASURER

03767 STAPLES ADVANTAGE

FIRST FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA
FIRST

FIRST

FIRSY

ADMINISTRATION
FIRST FIRST MATIONAL BBMK OF OMAHA
FIRST

FIRST

FIRST

COMPUTER

03101 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.

OVERPAYMENT MARCH 14 MHT

DCEDC LUNCHEON

DCEDC LUNCHEON

COPY PAPER/INK/LABELS/PENS
WMCA DISTRICT MTG/REINHARDT

HOTEL
MEALS
DCEDC LUNCHEON

MERLS

PARKING

FUEL

DCEDC LUNCHEON

3 USBE PORT HUBS

ACCOUNT #

01-000-000-41380

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL GEMERAL FUND

01-100-000-55600

TOTAL

TOTAL MAYOR

01-105-000-55600

TOTAL

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL

01-115-000-51250
01-115-000-55600
01-115-000-55600
01-115-000-55600
01-115-000-55600

TOTAL

TOTAL CITY CLERK-TREASURER

01-120-000-55600
01-120-000-55600
01-120-000-55600
01-120-000-56650

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION

01-125-0006-51950

TOTAL COMNPUTER

AMOUNT DUE
48.03
18.03
48.03
66.00
66.00
66.00
33.00
33.00
33.00
383.52
28.00
70.00
17.25
66.00
564.77
564.77
62,30
6.00
57,02
33.00
158.32
158.32
42.57
42.57
42.57




DATE: 04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:286
ED: AP443000.CST

VENDOR #

GENERAL FUND
CITY ASSESSOR

ASSQ APP

CITY CF STURGEON BAY

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

ASSOCIATED APPRAISAL

MUNICIPAL SERVICES ADHIN.

03075
03075

CARQUEST OF DOOR COUNTY

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

03133
03133
22800
22800

CELLCCM WISCONSIN RSA 10

WALMART COMMUNITY

FIRST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA

05/06/14 CONTRACT

BRAKE REPALR SUPPLIES

TOTAL

TOTAL

CORE RETRN/ FRICTION CALIFERS

04/14 STREETS CELL SERV
04/14 BOB B CELL SERV
STICKERS

OFFICE SUPPLIES

DCEDC LUNCHEON/SHEFCHIK

TOTAL

TOTAL MUNICIPAL SERVICES ADMIN.

ACCQUNT

01-330~000-55010

CITY ASSESSOR

01-145-000-56250
01-145-000-56250

01-150-000-58250
01-150-000-58250
01-156-000-51950
01-150-000-51950
01-150-000-55600

ELECTIONS DEPARTHENT

22800

CITY HALL

05500

05500

23730
MID STAT

INSURANCE

BH

WALMART COMMOUNITY

ENERGY CONTROL AND DESIGH INC

WS
MSS-DEPERE

BURKART HEISDORF INSURANCE

TOTAL

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

PENS & BATTERIES 01-155-0008-54999

TOTAL

TOTAL ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT

01-160-000-54599
01~160-000~-58999
01-160-000-56600
01-160-000-54999

VALVE ACTUATOR/CITY HALL
REMVE & REPLOE FAN MTR HVAC
CITY HALL

URINAL REPAIR PARTS

TOTAL

TOTAL CITY HALL

AMEND PROP VALUES 01-165-000-57350

TOTAL

PAGE: 2

RMOUNT DUE
1,245.83
1,245.83
1,245,83
146.75
-158.00
188,75
188.75
13.45
48.61
3.36
§.44
33.00
105.86
106.86
9.71
9.71
2.71
161.68
1,053.36
2,916.38
84.24
4,215.66
1,215.66
573.00
573.00




DATE: 04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:26
ID: AP443000.CST

YENDOR #

NAME

GEMERAL FUND

GENERAL EXPENDITURES

04696
046396
156820
16590
BUBRICKS
FIRST
STAFLES
STAPLES

DOOR COUNTY TREASURER

PACK AND SHIP PLUS

PITHEY BOWES

BUBRICK'S COMPLETE OFFICE
FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA
MISCONSIN DOCUMENT IMAGING LLC

POLICE DEPARTMENT

20081

C JEANQ
CUSTOM
FIRST
FIRST
SPUDE
U3 BBNK

TARGET BANK

CANDY JEANQUART

CUSTCH SERVICE INFORMATION LLC
FIRST MATIONAL BANK OF OWAHA

SARAH SPUDE~OLSON
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE

POLICE DEPARTHMENT/PATROL

01550
02208
02208
03133
03133
03134
04696
14875
15880
19880
20728
23645
25650
25650
25600
HOUGARRD
HOUGARRD
MODERN
NELSON

BP AMOCO
BAYCOM INC.

CELLCOM WISCONSIN RSA 10

CELLCOM-STURGECN BAY STORE
DOOR COUNTY TREASURER
NUTC GREEN BAY

STUYRGECN BAY UTILITIES

T R COCHART TIRE CENTER

WISCONSIN DEPT JUSTICE TIME

GREG ZAGER

CHAD HOUGAARD

MODERN MARKETING
NELSOM TACTICAL

CITY OF STURGECON BAY
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REFORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFQRE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT #

TOTAL INSURANCE

1ST QTR PHHE

18T QTR VOICEMAIL

RETURN SHIPPING

2 INK CARTRIDGES

5 CTN COPY PAPER

CRDT PREVIOUS MONTH INTEREST
MAINT AGREE ZND FLR COPY/C4540
MAINT AGREEMNT C/T COPY C81l45

91-199-000~58200
01-199-000-58200
01-199-0400~57250
81-199-000-57250
01-199-000-55650
01-1992-000-51520
01-199-000-55650
01-192-000-55650

TOTAL

TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES

2-USB CABLES/ELECTRONICS
JEARNQRT/MEAL REIMB EXCEL CLASS
POLICY WRITING SERVICES

DCEDC LUNCHEON/BRINKMAN
2-CISCO WIRELESS ROUTERS

S OLSON MEAL REIMB/ EXCEL TRN
RICOH COPIER FMT #16 OF 36

31-200-000-55500
01-200-000-55600
01-200-000-51600
01-200-000-55600
01-200-000-55500
01~200-000-55600
$1~200-000-55650

TOTAL

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT

BAL DUE TO UNLOCK ACCT

LAPTOP MAINT & REFORMAT

MDB REPAIR

04/14 CELL SERVICE

04/14 SQUAD PRINTERS

USBR DONGLE MODEM

MARCH FUELCHG 1712.64 @ 3.2930
SFST CLASS/ZAGER & HOUGAARD
SUNSET PK BT LAUNCH

HAUTICAL DR CAMERAR WWTPE

4 TIRES/ CAPT VEHICLE

TIME SYSTEM ACC. APRL-JUNE *14
ZAGER MEALS/ CELLPHHE WK

ZAGER MEAL REIB/ MISS CHIWD
ZBGER MEAL REIMB/MINDSET TRNIM
HOUGRD/MERL REIMB MNDSET TRN
HOUGARRD MEAL REIMB

NITRILE CLOVES (LG/XL)
AMMUNITION

01-215-080-51650
01-215-000-58999
01-215-000-58993
01-215-000-58250
01-215-000-5899%
01-215-080-58250
01-215-000-51658
01-215-000~55600
01~235-000-56150
01-215-000-56158
01-215-000-58600
03-215-000-58999
01-215-000-55600
01-215-000-55600
01-~215-000-55600
01-215-000-55600
01-215-000-55600
01-215-000-54989
01-215-000-51050

PAGE: 3

AMOUNT DUE

573.00

493,95
166.05
$,72
122.38
137.50
-10.16
665.00
1,600.00

3,184.44

3,184.44

45.56
10.34
750.00
33.00
389.50
13.20
181.00

1,433.00

1,433, 00

10.72
1,380.14
55.00
738.16
311.46
29.95
5,639.72
180.00
11.49
10.84
336.04
370.50
8.40
10.50
15.81
20.47
11.51
82.52
326.08




DATE:
TIME:
ID:

04/25/2014
12:48:2¢
AP443000.CS8T

YENDOR #

GENERAL FUND

NELSCN
PELL
ROOD0048
RO0O00048
ROO0OC048
RO00OC048
RDODOG08
WsUG

POLICE DEPT. /

RDJ SPEC

FIRE DEPARTMENT

03875
03675
030615
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03166
04150
04520
04696
06012
06012
14000
17250
18448
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
158480
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
14880

CITY OF STURGEON BAY
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

PAGE: 4

DAN PELLIZZER
SHELL FLEET PLUS

AUTCO ZONE, INC

WISCONSIN SPLITMAN USER GROUP -’

INVESTIGATIONS

RDJ SPECIALTIES, INC.

CARQUEST OF DOOR COUNTY

MIKE CIHLAR

DE JARDIN CLEANERS LLC
DOOR AND KEWAUNEE COUNTY
DOOR COUNTY TREASURER
FASTENAL COMPANY

NAPA AUTC PARTS
QUALITY STATE OIL CO.,

RENNERTS FIRE EQUIP SER INC

STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

INC.

SHIPPING

PELLIZER/MEAL REIMB MNDSET TRN
CREDIT
OUT OF TQWN FUEL

FED EXCISE TAX
OUT OF TOWN FUEL

QUT OF TOWN FUEL

2 ARMOR AUTD GLASS CLEARNER
2014 WSUG DUES/SUBORD AGENCY

TOTAL

TOTAL

ASSORTED SBPD COLOR BOOKS

TOTAL

POLICE DEPARTMENT/PATROL

81-225-000-57950

550.48

TOTAL PCLICE DEPT. / INVESTIGATIONS

QIL FILTERS

FUEL FILTER

AIR FILTER/UNIT #5

RETURN AIR FILTER

BULB

FUEL FILTER

FUEL PUMP RETURN

BRAKE TUBING & PARTS

2 UNIFORM SHIRTS

REPAIR TURN OUT GEAR

2014 ANNUAL DUES

MARCH FUEL

RATCHET STRAPS

STRAES

GREASE & BRAKELEEN

GIL

AUTCO EJECT /UNIT #5

HMEM FLD SPRINKLER

MEM FLD WARW HOUSE

835 N 14TH AVE SALT SHED
830 N 14TH AVE CITY GARAGE
N 7TH PLACE GARLAND PARK
DUCK POND

SUNSET CNTR/NEW CONC
FRANK GRASSE MEM SHELTER
OTUMBA PRARK

WEST SIDE WARMING HOUSE
WEST SIDE FIRE STATION
WEST SIDE FIRE STATICN
WEST SIDE
38 & NEENAH AVE PAVILLION

FIRE STATION

01-250-0006-53000
01-250-000-53000
01-250-000-53000
01-250~-000-53000
01-250~-000~-53000
01-250-000~-53000
01-250-000~53000
01-250-000-53000
01-250-000-52900
01-250-000-54999
01-250-000-56000
01-250-000-51650
01-250-0Q0-51350
01-250~000-51350
01-250-000-53000
01-250-000-53000
01-250-000-53000
Q1-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250~000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56675
01-250-000-56150
01-250-000-58650
01-250-000-56675

244,37
4,35
§.02

-4.08
1.11
9.35

-4.88

43.76

26.00
7.00

25.00

1,369.1¢

88.61

38,79

23.07

T32.72

268.36

42,00

42.00
5.20

42.00
5.20
5.20

42,00

13,00
5.20
5,20

42.00

88,90

117,06
5.20

RCCOUNT {f AMQUNY DUE

01-215-000-51050 15.00
01-215-000-55600 17.85
01-215-000-51650 -6.07
01-215-000-51650 43.03
01-215-000-51650 34.89
01-215-000-51650 42.00
01-215-000-58550 8.54
01-215-000-58985 50.00

2,765.05

9,765.05

550.48

550.48




DATE: 04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:286

ID: AP443000.C8T

VENDOR #

GENERAL FUND

19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
18880
19880
20725
22800
23730
FIRST
FIRST
FIRST
FIRST
FIRST
FIRST
FIRST
FIRST
LADDER
HED TECH
USs CELL
UST FIRE
WARNER

STORM SEWERS

12100
12100
12100
SEPTIC

NAME

CITY OF STURGEQN BRY
DEPARTMEHNT SUMMARY REPCRT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

T R COCHARYT TIRE CENTER
WALMART COMMUINITY

WeS

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA

LADDER TECHNOLOGIES, LTD.
MED-TECH RESOQURCE INC.

US CELLULAR

UST FIRE APPARATUS

WARNER-WEXEL WHOLESALE &

LAMPERT YARDS INC

SEPTIC MAINTENANCE OF DOOR CTY

SOLID WASTE MGMT/SPRING/FALL

18500
PRALMER
PALMER

R M C W INC
PALMER JOHNSON POWER SYSTEMS

38 5 NEEMAH AVE RSTRM
JAYCEES BALLFLD STAND
MICH ST JC BALLFLD SPRINKLE
WEST SIDE BALL FIELD LITES
GIRLS LITTLE LERGUE

FIRE PROTECTION

916 N 14TH WARNING SIREN
QUINCY BAY SHIP PIT

COVE RD/CRENAL RD SIREN
SUNSET PK STAR PLANT
8§35 N 14TH AVE SIGN SHED
CHERRY BLOSSM PK

CLAY BANKS SIREN

TIRE REPAIR

wasH FLUID/FERTILIZER/MOP

W SIDE FIRE 656 § OXFORD AVE
WIPER SWITCH TANKER 1
SHIPPING ON GATOR

MUFFLER, SWITCH & RELAY
SHOCK SPRINGS/2 TIRES

TIRE UPGRADE

FOOD/ BURY TRAINING
HOTEL/HERLACHE/GOV CONF
MFALS/ HERLACHE/GOV CONF
LADDER HEAT LABELS
STETHOSCOPES

INSPECTION AIR CARDS

2 VALVUE KITS

HAND TOWELS

TREAT LUMBER/STRWBRRY LN WALK
TREAT LUMBER/ STRWBRRY LN WALK
TREAT LUMBER/STRWBRRY LNE WALK
JET STRM SEWER LINE

CLUTCH SET

CLTCH SHFT, KEYWAYS,BERRING/44

PAGE: 5

ACCOUNT | AMOUNT DUE
01-250-000-56675 26.00
01-250-000-56875 13.00
01-250-000-506675 42,00
01-250-000-56875 5.20
01-250-000-56675 42,00
01-250-000~56675 8,720.75
01-250-000~-56150 8.24
01-250-000-56675 42.00
01-250-000-56150 13.99
01-250-000-56675 42,00
01-250-000-56675 5.20
01-250-000-56675 13.00
01-250-000-56150 15,82
01-250~000-53000 20.00
01-250-000-54998 190.53
01-250-000-56600 308.18
01-250-000-53000 207.93
01-250-000-53000 450.00
01-250-000-53000 333.486
01-250-000-53000 271.84
01-250-000-53000 41.60
01-250-000-55600 54.4%
01-250-000-55600 77.70
01-250-000-55600 17.24
01-250-000-56250 219.54
01-256~-000-51350 35.18
01-250-000-58250 48.32
01-250-000-53000 454,02
01-250-000-54299 128.94

TOTAL

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTHENT
01-300-000-54299 198.65
01~-300-000-54299 12.38
01-300-000-549599 108,34
01-300-000-51150 1,827,50

TOTAL

TOTAL STCRM SEWERS
41-311-000-56250 114.00
01-311-000~53000 500.00
01-311-000-56250 68.06

CLTCH SHFT,KEYWAYS,BEAR/44

TOTAL

TOTAL SOLID WASTE MGMT/SPRING/FALL

15,308.94

15,388.94

1,947.87

1,947.87

682,06

682.06




DRTE: 04/25/2014
12:48:286
AFP443000.C8T

TIME:

ID:

VENDOR # NAME

GENERAL FUND
STREET SWEEPING

02844 BRUCE MUNICIBAL EQUIPMENT INC
03078 CRRQUEST OF DOOR COUNTY
25700 ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC
25708
25700
25700
25708

ROADWAYS/STREETS
08225 HERLACHE SMALL ENGINE

SNOW REMOVAL

08012 FASTENAL COMPANY

STREET SIGNS AND MARKINGS

22800 WALMART COMMUNITY

STREET MACHINERY

02005
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
03075
04603

BAY ELECTRONICS, INC.

CARQUEST OF DOOR COUNTY

HALRON LUBRICANTS INC

RADIO REPEATER REPAIR
MECHANICAL FUEL
FUEL FILTER
CREDIT RETURN
CREDIT RETURN
1/4 PT UMIVERSAL CEM/SHOP
5 GAL HYD CGIL/ UNIT # 13
RUVECQPAK/SHOP

MISC AUTC PARTS

GATL CAR WASH CONCHTRATE
ATR FILTER/ #13

AIR FILTER

MISC SUPPLIES

55 GAL DRUM KEROSERE

PUMP

81-450-000-52150 1,000.00
01~450-000-5215¢ 43.98
01-450-000-5215¢ 1.48
01-450-000-52150 ~0.04
01-450-000-52150 -20.20
01-450-000~52150 6.15
01-450-000-53000 25.66
01-450-000-52150 6.42
01-450-000-52150 6.42
01-450-000-52150 45.98
01-450-000-52150 27.71
01-450-000-52150 16.71
01-450-000-52150 51.84
01-450-000-53000 323.1%

CITY OF STURGECN BAY PAGE: 6
DEPARTMENT SUMHARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION RACCOUNT # AMOUNT DUE

A/C SWITCH / #16 01-330-000-51400 58.45

ATR & HI-POP OILL FLTRS/SWP 16 01-330-000-51400 37.43

2 PIVOT BUSHINGS 01-330-000-51400 16%.50

2 PIVOT WELDMENTS 01-330-000-51400 359.80

2 SEALS 01-330-000-51400 57.20

4 BEARINGS 01-330-000-51400 95,80

4 BERRING CUP 01-338-000-51400 54,00
TOTAL 636.88
TOTAL STREET SHEEPING 836.88

6 PK 2 CYCLE OIL 01-400-000-54599 15.00
TOTAL 15.00
TOTAL RORDWAYS/STREETS 15,00

1 ROLL 1/2 " CABLE/PLCW WINGS 01-410-000-51400 758.45
TQOTAL 758.45
TOTAL SNOW REMOVAL 759.45

BATTERIES/ROAD FLASHERS 01-420-000-52550 137,64
TOTAL 137.64
TOTAL STREET S$IGNS AND MARKINGS 137.64




CITY OF STURGECN BAY
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

DATE: 04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:26
ID: AP443000,C8T
VENDOR # HAME
GENERAT, FUND
06012 FASTENAL COMPANY
06012
15890 PACK BND SHIP PLUS
APPLY MS APPLIED MSS
APPLY MS !
APPLY MS
APPLY M3
APPLY MS
' BH WULF  E.H. WOLF & SONS, INC.
QUALITY QUALITY TRUCK CARE CENTER INC
CITY GARAGE
03075 CARQUEST OF DOOR COUNTY
03166 MIKE CIHLAR
19880 STURGEON BAY UTILITIES
198840
19880
23730 WES
FIRST FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA
VIKING VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC

HIGHWAYS — GENERAL

[U-2- 2 WALTER HANISKO

19880 STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

PARK & RECREATICN ADMIN

03133 CELLCOM WISCONSIN RSA 10
03133

03133

FIRST FIRST MNATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA

RODO0OBI0 BADGER BOUMNCER

PARKS AND PLAYGROUNDS

1 TAP

10 GRADE § BOLTS

RETURN SHIPPING

1 PK 25 CUT OFF WHEELS

1 ROLL MECBANICS WIRE

2 CUTTING FLUID

2 PK NITRILE GLOVES

SHIPPING

55 CAL DRM DRYE TRN FLUID/ #13
TURN SIGNAL SWITCH

TOTAL

ACCOUNT #

PAGE: 7

AMOUNT DUE

01-450-000-53000
01-450-000-53000
01-450-000-545899
01-450-000G-53000
01-450-000-53000
031-450-000-53000
01-450-000-53000
01-450-000-53000
0E-450-060-53000
01-450-000-53000

TOTAL STREET MACHINERY

HD BARREL PUMP

SAFETY MANUAL BINDING
835 N 14TH AVE SALT SHED
335 N 14TH AVE
835 N 14TH AVE
835 N 14TH AVE
3 1/? TON SBERVICE JACK/STREETS

EMERGENCY LIGHT/SHOP

CITY GARAGE
CITY GARAGE
CITY GARAGE

TOTAL

TOTAL

HANISKA/WRK BOOT REIMBURSE
TRFC WARNING LGT ELM CIY C

TOTAL

01-460-000-54989
01-460-000~52350
01-460-000-56150
01-460-000-56150
0:-460-000-58650
01-460-000-56600
01-460-000-52700
01-460-000-54899

CITY GARAGE

01-499-0040-56800
01-498-000-58000

TOTAL HIGHWAYS - GENERAL

04/14 BORB B CELL. SERV
©4/14 SWYR DCK CELL SERV
24/14 CELL SERVICE

TEAM LEADERSHIP DEPOSIT
BOUNCER/ CG CITY DEDICATION

TOTAL

TOTAL PARK & RECREATION ADMIN

01-500~-000-58250
01-500-000-58250
01-500~000-58250
01-500-000~52250
01-500-000-52250

10.5¢C
4.20

96.
36.
32.
39.
i8.
$13.
251.

83
44
50
98
00
a0
98

2,711.76

2,711.76

£3.11
36.99
8.24
913.30
127.00
2,749.67
195.67
19.40

4,093.38

4,003.38

100.00
2.75

102.75

102.75

48.61
14.12
13.13
175.00
415.00

665,86

665.86




DATE: 04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:26

ID: AP443000.CST

VENDOR #

GENERAL FUND

02005
93075
04696
06225
13048
130735
16737
19880
19880
19880
19880
12880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
19880
23730

BALLFIELDS

0zz27
0zz27
02227
13150

HUNICIPAL DOCKS

19880
19880
19880
23730
EZ DOCK

CITY OF STURGEON BAY
DEPARTHENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFCRE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT #

BAY ELECTRONICS, INC.
CARQUEST OF DBOOR COUNTY
DOOR COUNTY TREASURER
HERLACHE SMALL ENGINE
MAY'S SPORT CENTER
SHAWN MADDEN

PORTSIDE BUILDERS IHNC
STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

eSS

BEACON ATHLETICS

MASTERCRAEFT WELDING SYSTEM

STURGEON BAY UTILITIES

wWes
EZ DOCK FLOATING DOCK SYSTEM

RADIO REPEATER REPATR
LUBRICANT

MARCH FUEL CHARGES

BELTS FOR EDGER

SPARK PLUG

MADDEN/SAFETY GLASS REIMB
FRAMING GUN

S 3RD & OREGON-MARTIN PARK
MEM FLD WARM HOUSE

MEM FLD WARM HOUSE

N 7TH PLACE GARLAND PARK
SUNSET CNTR/NEW CONC
SUNSET CNTR/NEW CONC
FRANK GRASSE MEM SHELTER
OTUMBA PARK .

fIEET SIDE WARMING HOUSE
JAYCEES BALLFLD STAND
FLAG LIGHT 5TH & MICHIGAN
MEM FLD PREKING LOT

GIRLS LiTTLE LEAGUE
CTUMBA OK WALKWAY LITES
OTUMBA PK STREET LTG
FLORIDA ST/SUNSET PK

35 N 14TH AVE SIGH SHED
CHERRY BLOSSM PK

MEM FLD 335 5 14TH AVE

01-510-000-53000
01-510-000-54292
01-510-000-51650
01-510-000-52700
01-510-000-53000
01-510-000-56800
01-510-000-51350
01-510-000-56150
01-510-000-56150
01-510-000-50650
01-510-000-56150
01-510-000-56150
01-510-000-58650
01-510-000-56150
81-510-000-56150
81-530-000-56150
81~5310-000-56150
81-530-000-56150
81-510-000-56150C
01~510-000-56150
01-510-000-56150
01-510~-G00-56150
01-510-000-56150
01-510-000-56150
01-510-000~56150
01-510-000~56600

TOTAL

TOTAL

2 PALLTS DIAMOND DRY
1 CHALKER
SHIPPING
STEEL/ PBI WATR VALVE BOX

PARKS AND PLAYGROUNDS

01-520-000-5499%
01-520-000-54998%
01-520-000-54998
01-520-000-54999

TOTAL

TOTAL BALLFIELDS

36 S NEENAH PKG LOT LTS
38 5 NEENAH AVE PAVILLICON
38 S NEENAH AVE RSTRM

3¢ S NEENAH AVE RESTROOM

01-550-000-56150
01-550-000-56150
01-550-000-56150
01-550~000-56600

2 STHDRD PIFE BRCKTS/SNST DGCK  01-550-000-54999

TOTAL

TOTAL MUNICTIPAL DOCKS

PAGE: &

AMOUNT DUE

780.00
6.98
1,120.05
20.60
2.95
100.00
94,78
$.32
106.78
155.70
8,24
81.54
51,40
34.25
8,24
32.78
8.24
37.14
15,40
49.70
30.46
148.57
14,85
19.22
§.24
341.07

3,286.58

3,286.58

780.00
319.00
130.00

45.00

1,27%4.00

1,274.00

i28.717
8.24
28.60
10.78
234.00

410.45

410.45




DATE: (04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:26
ID: AP443000.CST

VENDOR # NAME

CITY OF STURGEON BAY
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION BCCOUNT #

AMOUNT DUE

PAGE: 9

GENERAL FUND
HATERFRONT PARKS & WALKWAYS

158880
15880

STURGECN BAY UTILITIES

PUBLIC FACILITIES

04696 DOOR COUNTY TREASURER

COMMUNEITY & ECONOMIC DEVLEMT

FIRST FIRST NATICHNAL BANK OF OMAHA

FIRST

CAPITRL FUND
PATROL

19560 STREICHERS PROF POLICE EQUIP

FIRE DEPARTMENT

EXPENSE

02275 BENDLIN FIRE EQUIPMENT

FIRST FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA
FIRST

FIRST

ROADMAYS/STREETS
ANNUAL RESURFACING & BASE REP,

nc CUST DC CUSTOM DRILLING & BLASTING

01-570~-000-56150
01-570-000-58150

DC MUSEUM WALKWAY LIGHTS
bC MUSEUM PKG LOT LIGHTS

TOTAL

24,28
129,51

TOTAL WATERFRONT PARKS & HALKWAYS

2014 15T QTR MAINT COSTS 01-700-000-56850

TOTAL

TOTAEL PUBLIC FACILITIES

01-500-000-56650
01-%00-000~-58999

DCEDC LUNCHECN/TONY & MARTY
DCEDC LUNCHECH/TONY & MARTY

TOTAL

15,722.47

50.00
16.00

TOTAL COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVLEHMT

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

2-MP-15 RIFLES@ $785.00 ER 10-215-000-59999

TOTAL

TOTAL PATROL

10-250-000-52060
10-250-300-59060
10-250-000-53070
10-250-000-53060

AUTQ EJECT

INTERSECTOR LIGHTS
INSPECT DOCKING STATION
RUMBLER

TOTAL EXPENSE

TOTAL FIRE DEPARRTMENT

SOTL BORING ROCK DEPT/BAYSHIFP 10-400-110-59095

1,570.00

259.3¢6
284.50

85.67
504.80

300.00

TOTAL RNNUAL RESURFACING & BASE REP.

153.79

153.79

15,722.47

15,722.47

66.00

86.400

70,439.35

i,570.00

i,570.00

1,134.43

1,134.43

300.00




DATE: 04/25/2014
12:48:26
ID: BP443000.CST

TIME

VEMDOR # NAME

CAPITAI FUND
ANNUAL RESURFACING & BASE REP.
ANNUAL RESURFACING & BASE REFR,

CABLE TV
CABLE TV / GENERAL
CARLE TV / GEMERAL

FIRST FTIRST WATIONAL BANK OF CHAHA
FIRST
MANN MANN COMMUMICATIONS, LLC

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE
SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND
SCLID WASTE ENTERFRISE FUND
03075
IN POWER INLAND POWER GROUP

CARQUEST OF DOOR COUNTY

JX ENT JX ENTERPRISES, INC.

CITY OF STURGEQN BAY
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REFORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEM DESCRIPTION

ACCOUNT #

AMOUNT DUE

TOTAL ROADWAYS/STREETS

TOTAL CAPITAL FUND

SHIPPING /REPAIR ULTRA WEXUS
REPR ULTRA WEXUS & RETRN SHIP
05/06/14 CONTRACT

TOTAL CABLE

TOTAL CRBLE

TOTAL. CABLE

HYD HOSE & MIsC SUPP/ K60 80-000—
6 GAL SYNTHETIC TRANS FLUID/3% 60-000-
4 OIL FILTERS/#3% & 41 60-000-~

21000~
21-0003-000-56250
2i-000~-000-55015

000-56250

™ / GENERAL

TV / GENERAL

TV

000-53000
000-52050
000-53000

19.07
2606.57
4,685.00

74.86
220.98
151.249

TOTAL SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

TOTAL SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE FUND

TOTAL SOLID WASTE ENTERFRISE

TOTAL ALL FUNDS

PAGE: 10

300.00

3,004.43

4,964.64

4,964.64

4,964.64

447,08

447.08

447,08

78,855.50




May 6, 2014 Common Council

MANUAL CHECKS

MINNESOTA LIFE
04/11/14

Check #74598
May Life Insurance
01-600-000-50552

VISION INSURANCE PLAN
04/15/14

Check #74599

May Vision Insurance Premium
01-000-000-21540

SOUTHERN DOOR SCHOOLS
04/23/14

Check # 74678

March Mobile Home Tax Payment
01-000-000-41300

STURGEON BAY SCHOOLS
04/23/14

Check #74679

March Mobile Home Tax Payment
01-000-000-41300

TOTAL MANUAL CHECKS

Page 10A

$1,721.08

$710.10

$183.27

$1,043.76

$3,658.19




DATE: 04/25/2014
TIME: 12:48:26
ID: AP443000.CST

VENDOR # NAME

CITY OF STURGEON BAY PAGE: 11
DEPARTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVOICES DUE ON/BEFORE 05/06/2014

ITEY DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # RAMOUNT DUE

SUMMARY OF FUNDS:

GENERAL. FUND

CAPITAL FUND

CRBLE TV

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE

TOTAL —— ALL FUNDS

7/_10&@:3?” Y, 641,54

3,004.43
4,964.64
447.08




